Coachella Civic Center, Hearing Room
53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 # www.coachella.org

AGENDA

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

CiTY OF COACHELLA
CULTURAL AND ARTS COMMISSION

September 14, 2021
5:30 PM

Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20, this meeting will be
conducted by teleconference/electronically and
there will be no in-person public access to the meeting location.
If you would like to attend the meeting via Zoom, here is the link:

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83460650539?pwd=RWIISnIKVUZRWVNJR2RIeEJncjV|dz09

Or One tap mobile:
+16699006833,,83460650539¢#,,,,*717819#
Or join by phone:
US: +1 669 900 6833

Webinar ID: 834 6065 0539
Passcode: 717819

e Public comments may be received either via email, or telephonically, or via Zoom with a limit of 250
words, or three minutes:

o Written comments may be submitted to the subcommittee electronically via email to
cjimenez@coachella.org. Transmittal prior to the start of the meeting is required. Any
correspondence received during or after the meeting will be distributed to the Commission and retained
for the official record

o Or, you may leave a message at (760) 262-6263, before 3:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting.

CALL To ORDER:

RoLL CALL:

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

“At this time the Commission may announce any items being pulled from the agenda or continued to another date
or request the moving of an item on the agenda.”



http://www.coachella.org/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83460650539?pwd=RWllSnlKVUZRWVNJR2RIeEJncjVjdz09

Agenda Cultural and Arts Commission September 14, 2021
Page 2

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

1

Regular Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2021, of the Cultural and Arts Commission of the City of Coachella,
California.

PRESENTATION(S):

2.

Informational/Orientation Presentation by City Attorney Carlos Campos

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

|wo

B

|0

|

|~

|

Art in Public Places Program Fund Report

Recommend Approval to Conduct a Request for Proposals Solicitation Process to Conduct a Feasibility
Study for the Coachella Art Walk Program in the Amount of $40,000

Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Glazed Tile Mural by Marnie L. Navarro
Depicting the Bond Between Parents and their Children in the Amount of $20,000

Recommend for Approval an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore the Shady Lane Murals by
Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $13,000

Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Mural of Dolores Huerta by Michael Angelo
Hernandez in the Amount of $15,000

Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Vietham War Memorial Art Mural by
Autumn Martino (Artist - $13,000) and Pedro Salcido (Artistic Director - $1,000) for a Total Amount of
$14,000

PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

“The public may address the Commission on any item of interest to the public that is not on the agenda, but is
within the subject matter jurisdiction thereof. Please limit your comments to three (3) minutes.”

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

Commissioner Comments

Staff Liaison Comments

ADJOURNMENT:

Complete Agenda Packets are available for public inspection on the
City’s website www.coachella.org.

THIS MEETING IS ACCESSIBLE To PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES



http://www.coachella.org/

Iltem 1.

Coachella Civic Center, Hearing Room
53-462 Enterprise Way, Coachella, California
(760) 398-3502 & www.coachella.org

MINUTES

OF A REGULAR MEETING
OF THE

CiTY OF COACHELLA
CULTURAL AND ARTS COMMISSION

August 26, 2021
3:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER:

The Regular Meeting of the Cultural and Arts Commission of the City of Coachella was called to order at 3:05
p.m.

RoLL CALL:

Present: Commissioner Yurema Arvizu, Commissioner Keila Cupil (*arrived at 3:25 p.m.),
Commissioner Andrew Gallegos, Commissioner Armando Lerma.

Absent: Commissioner Jonathan Rivera.

Pursuant to Executive Order N-29-20 pertaining to the coronavirus/COVID-19, this meeting was
conducted entirely by teleconference/electronically with no in-person public access to the meeting location.

CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR APPOINTMENTS:

Nomination for the Position of Chair:

Motion: To nominate Armando Lerma to the position of Chair; and
To nominate Yurema Arvizu to the position of Vice Chair

Made by: Commissioner Lerma

Seconded by: Commissioner Arvizu

Approved: 3-0, by a unanimous roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Yurema Arvizu, Commissioner Andrew Gallegos, Commissioner
Armando Lerma.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Commissioner Cupil, and Commissioner Rivera.



http://www.coachella.org/

Iltem 1.

Minutes Cultural and Arts Commission August 26
Page 2

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Motion: To approve the agenda as presented.

Made by: Chair Lerma

Seconded by: Vice Chair Arvizu

Approved: 3-0, by a unanimous roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gallegos, Vice Chair Arvizu, Chair Lerma.
NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: None.

ABSENT: Commissioner Cupil, and Commissioner Rivera.

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES:

NONE.

PRESENTATION(S):

NONE.

(*Commissioner Cupil arrived at this point in the meeting, was silent and did not participate in voting due to
what appeared to be technical difficulties; therefore, all votes from this Commissioner were counted as
abstentions.)

NEW BUSINESS CALENDAR (LEGISLATIVE AND ADMINISTRATIVE):

1. Artin Public Places Program — Mural by Marnie L. Navarro.

Motion: To continue this item to the next meeting

Made by: Chair Lerma

Seconded by: Vice-Chair Arvizu

Approved: 3-0-1, by a unanimous roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gallegos, Vice-Chair Arvizu, Chair Lerma.
NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: *Commissioner Cupil.

ABSENT: Commissioner Rivera.

2. Artin Public Places Program — “Legend, Dolores Huerta” Mural by Michael Angelo Hernandez.

Motion: To continue this item to the next meeting
Made by: Chair Lerma
Seconded by: Commissioner Gallegos

Approved: 3-0-1, by a unanimous roll call vote:




Iltem 1.

Minutes Cultural and Arts Commission August 26
Page 3

AYES: Commissioner Gallegos, Vice-Chair Arvizu, Chair Lerma.

NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: *Commissioner Cupil.

ABSENT: Commissioner Rivera.

3. Artin Public Places Program — Restore the Shady Lane Murals by Culturas Music and Arts

Motion: To continue this item to the next meeting

Made by: Chair Lerma

Seconded by: Vice-Chair Arvizu

Approved: 3-0-1, by a unanimous roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gallegos, Vice-Chair Arvizu, Chair Lerma.
NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: *Commissioner Cupil.

ABSENT: Commissioner Rivera.

4. Artin Public Places Program — Veterans’ Park Vietnam Memorial Art Mural by Autumn Martino (Artist)
and Pedro Salcido (Artistic Director)

Motion: To continue this item to the next meeting

Made by: Chair Lerma

Seconded by: Vice-Chair Arvizu

Approved: 3-0-1, by a unanimous roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gallegos, Vice-Chair Arvizu, Chair Lerma.
NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: *Commissioner Cupil.

ABSENT: Commissioner Rivera.

5. Artin Public Places Program — Authorize a Request for Proposals Solicitations Process to Conduct a
Feasibility Study for the Coachella Art Walk Program.

Motion: To continue this item to the next meeting

Made by: Chair Lerma

Seconded by: Vice-Chair Arvizu

Approved: 3-0-1, by a unanimous roll call vote:

AYES: Commissioner Gallegos, Vice-Chair Arvizu, Chair Lerma.
NOES: None.

ABSTAIN: *Commissioner Cupil.

ABSENT: Commissioner Rivera.




Iltem 1.

Minutes Cultural and Arts Commission August 26

Page 4

PuBLIC COMMENTS (NON-AGENDA ITEMS):

1. Denise Delgado

REPORTS AND REQUESTS:

Commissioner Comments
Staff Liaison Comments

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further business to come before the Culture and Arts Commission, Chair Lerma adjourned the
meeting at 4:55 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Celina Jimenez

Celina Jimenez
Grants Manager




STAFF REPORT

9/14/2021
To: Cultural and Arts Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Art in Public Places Program Fund Report

Item 3.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff is providing this report for informational purposes only.

BACKGROUND:

On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction,
remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places
ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of
Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment
and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality
works of public art.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The Art in Public Places Program Fund balance is $200,000.

FiscAL IMPACT:

The Cultural and Arts Commission will review five proposals requesting a total of $102,000 in
grant funding support at its meeting of September 14, 2021. Should the Commission recommend
approval of all proposals, the remaining fund balance will be $98,000.




STAFF REPORT

Iltem 4.

9/14/2021
To: Cultural and Arts Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
Recommend Approval to Conduct a Request for Proposals Solicitation Process
SUBJECT: to Conduct a Feasibility Study for the Coachella Art Walk Program in the
Amount of $40,000
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Cultural and Arts Commission consider approving a Request for
Proposals solicitation process to conduct a feasibility study for the Coachella Art Walk Program
in the amount of $40,000 from the City of Coachella’s Art in Public Places Program Fund.

BACKGROUND:

On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction,
remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places
ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of
Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment
and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality
works of public art.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The City of Coachella would like to implement a place-making and economic development
strategy through the cultural arts by possibly developing a Coachella Art Walk visual arts space in
its Downtown Pueblo Viejo District (see map on page 3). Since the stakes are very high in
implementing a project of this magnitude that requires not only a significant investment of time,
money, and knowledge—but also vision, a strong mission, clear plans, and a compelling case for
support — all of which begin with a feasibility study. A comprehensive process, including facility
needs assessment, program plan development, stakeholder and community engagement, market
analysis, regional and national benchmarking, capital and operating cost estimation,
financing/fundraising assessment, and a tremendous amount of additional data collection and
analysis, is necessary to align dreams and reality, both known and yet to be discovered. Through
a feasibility study, the City of Coachella hopes to explore the critical steps that should be taken
before embarking on the lengthy journey of creating a new or revitalized cultural arts space.

The first phase of the feasibility study might be the community needs assessment which typically




includes a review of internal data, the formation of a task force, market and demographic analysis,
stakeholder interviews, and a benchmarking study, among other elements.

The City of Coachella would like to establish cross-sector partnerships that would include
nonprofit cultural organizations, schools, universities, and other agencies in an effort to examine
all existing background materials, including intended operational, financial, and concept plans.
Once an analysis of this data has been completed, an advisory task force comprised of community
stakeholders could be formed. This group will provide important background information,
specifically regarding the community’s needs and expectations. A key element of facilities and
program planning work is gaining a deep understanding of the project’s motivation and goals (the
vision). It is imperative to convene major stakeholders so that they can articulate the project’s
vision and intended goals. This is perhaps the most important step in the entire process, as it
uncovers the core reason for the study and sets the stage for community, political, and financial
support throughout the rest of the process.

Arts and culture are important to a city’s economy. Arts and culture-related industries, also known
as “creative industries,” provide direct economic benefits to communities:

They create jobs

Attract investments

Generate tax revenues

Stimulate local economies through tourism and consumer purchases
Are principal determinants of quality of life

AN N NANAN

The arts are part of the traditional quality-of-life factors including safe neighborhoods, good
schools, strong infrastructure, and accessible recreational and outdoor “natural” attractions, to
create more viable, desirable and livable communities.

Iltem 4.

Sample listing of possibilities for the Art Walk: Things to Do Categories:

Arts & Culture

Spas & Wellness
Music & Nightlife
Shopping & Lifestyle
Tacos & Tequila

Fine Arts Building

Art Gallery/Museum

Art Studio

Outdoor Sculpture / Botanical Garden
Pop Up Vending

Ticketed Guided Tours

Visitor Center

Art, Music, Film Festivals




A o

2

nol A =
Tripoli Way

50th Ave

Coachella FS

50th Ave

Coachella

Coachella

Library

Palm View
Elementary
School

Bobby Duke
Middle School

Cairo St

Araby Ave

52nd Ave

W

DOWNTOWN COACHELLA

<

111

dad Ave

dy Lane @
‘ark ~

Iltem 4.

W

10




LS 2
SCULPTURES

[Sample] Vision

Coachella will be recognized as an arts and cultural destination. Through a variety of performing
and visual arts, the city’s history, small-town character, cultural destinations, and other civic
settings come to life. Creative wayfinding encourages pedestrians to discover the many assets of
the City. Art Walk events, supported by local businesses, engage citizens and visitors of all ages
while enhancing local commerce and creating a sense of cultural identity.

11




ALTERNATIVES:

1. Not Approve the Request to Solicit Proposals to Conduct Feasibility Study for the Coachella
Art Walk Program
2. Provide Alternative Direction

FiscAL IMPACT:

If the Cultural and Arts Commission approves the staff recommendation, the $40,000 will be
withdrawn from the Special Revenue Funds (130) — Development Impact Fees for Public Art for
Fiscal Year 2021-22.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Sample - City of Laguna Beach Final Creative Placemaking Assessment
2. Sample - City of Ogden Utah RFP for Creative District Plan

Iltem 4.

12




Creative District Plan O S

UTAH

March 2017 Stll Untamed

Request for Proposals

|. Purpose of Request

The purpose of this Request for Proposal (“RFP”) is to solicit proposals from qualified planning
and design firms (“Responder(s)”) interested, knowledgeable, and experienced in providing the
services necessary to develop a Plan and Concept Design for Ogden’s Creative District
(“Project”).

Through this RFP process, Ogden City (“City”) plans to select a firm (“Consultant”) for contract
award that demonstrates specialized experience, strong capabilities, and successful performance
in planning and design services (particularly for arts or creative districts), as well providing a
competitive fee proposal. Proposals will be evaluated using the criteria defined herein.

Responders shall limit their submittals to the information required herein as well as other relevant
information regarding qualifications and experience.

Il. Background

The City desires to establish a Creative District where artists, makers, and other creatives live,
work, exhibit, and sell their work; where residents and visitors have new opportunities to engage
with arts and culture; and where the arts are woven into the daily experience. The proposed
boundaries of the Creative District are from Wall to Jefferson Avenues, and from 24" to 26™
Streets. This area includes portions of the Central Business District and East Central
Communities and will link Historic 25" Street with the Jefferson Avenue Historic District.

Initial efforts that have shaped our current concept of the Creative District include: development
of a Master Plan for Arts and Culture, including online surveys and public input sessions; asset
mapping; small group meetings with representatives from arts & culture organizations; several
pilot projects in the Creative District (including a mural at 25th Street & Adams Avenue and video
projections on vacant buildings); and development of concept designs for key public spaces in
the district. These initial efforts have demonstrated that there is enthusiasm in the community for
a Creative District. The City is now planning to undertake development of a shared community
vision for the Creative District, along with the Plan and Concept Design described in this RFP.

lll. Scope-of-Work

The City is seeking a qualified planning and design firm to develop a Plan and Concept Design
for Ogden’s emerging Creative District. The Creative District Plan (CDP) should focus on
placemaking strategies, including both programmatic and physical elements. Elements to be
addressed in the CDP may include, but are not limited to, streetscape design, potential public use

Page 1

Item 4.

13




areas, public art, signage and wayfinding, gateway markers, street furniture, transit stops,
landscape and plantings, and crosswalks.

The CDP should present near-term strategies, as well as projects that could be implemented
within three-year and five-to-seven-year timeframes. The CDP should identify specific project
elements and provide approximate cost estimates for those elements. It should prioritize the
strategies and present an implementation plan (including the identification of potential funding
sources).

The CDP should build upon existing community plans — including the Central Business District
Community Plan, the East Central Community Plan, and the recently completed Master Plan for
Arts and Culture. It should also be coordinated with the Transportation Master Plan, which is
currently being developed. Once finalized, the CDP will be presented to the Planning Commission
and City Council and may potentially be formalized as an amendment to an existing community
or master plan.

The CDP must incorporate the community vision for the Creative District. The community vision
is currently being developed. Ogden City and its partners will be responsible for organizing
stakeholder meetings with the arts & creative community, business owners, and residents. Ogden
City will also be responsible for convening a community-wide visioning session and a Creative
District Steering Committee to develop a shared vision for the Creative District. The Consultant
will be responsible for developing a CDP that expresses this vision. The Consultant will also be
responsible for participating in several community visioning events and working with the Steering
Committee.

The Consultant shall perform the following tasks as part of this scope-of-work:

e Attend a kickoff meeting with the City’s internal project team

e Participate in a community visioning session for the Creative District

e Coordinate with the Creative District Steering Committee to refine the core vision and
key elements identified during the community visioning session

o Develop a plan and conceptual design for the Creative District (the CDP)

o Present a draft version of the CDP to the Steering Committee

e Incorporate input from the Steering Committee into a revised version of the CDP

o Participate in an open house to present the revised CDP to the community

e Incorporate input from the community open house into the final version of the CDP

e Coordinate with the team working on a brand & marketing plan for the Creative District

Deliverables shall consist of three bound hard copies and one electronic version (PDF) of the
CDP.

V. Contract Award

It is anticipated that this Request for Proposals will result in a single contract award. The total
contract award amount is not to exceed $10,000 for the length of the contract. Funding for the
contract will be provided through an Our Town grant from the National Endowment for the Arts to
Ogden City. The contract will be made between Ogden City and the Consultant. Standard terms
and conditions for a Professional Services Agreement with Ogden City will be required. The
contract term will commence on April 1, 2017 and terminate by September 30, 2017.

Page 2

Iltem 4.

14




V. Milestone Schedule

The below schedule for proposal and contract milestones is approximate and subject to change.

Advertise RFP March 6-23, 2017
Deadline for Proposal Submittal March 23, 2017
Evaluation of Proposals March 24-29, 2017
Notice of Award to Selected Responder March 29, 2017
Execution of Contract with Selected Responder April 1, 2017
Required Completion Date for Project September 30, 2017

VI. Proposal Requirements

Proposals must be no more than 15 pages and shall be composed of the items listed below and
presented in the same sequence.

Cover Sheet: Responder's Name, Contact Name, Contact Information, and Submittal Date.

Introduction and Qualifications: Provide a brief overview of the Responder’s history,
strengths, expertise, and successes. Discuss the Responder’s qualifications for planning and
design services (particularly for arts or creative districts).

Proposed Approach: Describe how the Responder intends to meet and/or exceed the
requirements of this project. Describe key steps of the project and how the Responder would
approach these steps. Identify key team members and describe their anticipated roles and
responsibilities on this project.

Work Examples: Provide several examples of the Responder's work. The work examples
should preferably be for planning and design services, creative placemaking projects, or arts or
creative district development. Include a description of the Responder’s specific role on each
project.

References: List at least three prior and/or current clients that the City may contact who will
vouch for your organization’s ability to deliver quality concept design and planning on time and
within budget. Include name, title, email address and phone numbers.

VIl. Selection Process & Criteria

The City will evaluate all proposals that are submitted through this RFP process. The City may
interview all or some of the Responders as part of the selection process. Proposals will be
evaluated by a selection committee composed of City employees and will be based upon the
following criteria:

e Professional competence, experience, qualifications, and ability of the Responders
e Quality of the proposed approach

¢ Quality of the work examples and applicability to the current Project

o Feedback from references

e Results of a final interview and presentation (if needed)

Page 3

Item 4.

15




Upon exercising its discretion and determining which Responder is best suited to meet the needs
of this Project, the City will notify all Responders of its decision.

VIIl. Procedures for Submittal of Proposals

Responders shall submit four hard copies of their proposals to the Ogden City Purchasing
Department. Proposals must be submitted in a sealed envelope bearing the name of the
Responder, addressed as indicated below, and clearly marked Attn: Creative District Plan RFP.
Responses to the RFP shall be submitted to:

Ogden City Purchasing Department
2549 Washington Blvd., Suite 510
Ogden, UT 84401

Responses to the RFP are due on March 23, 2017 by 2:00 pm.

Questions pertaining to this RFP should be submitted in writing to the address shown above or
by e-mail to purchasing@ogdencity.com. Questions must be submitted no later than five business
days prior to the RFP closing date and time. To ensure fair consideration for all Responders,
responses to the submitted questions will be provided in the form of an addendum to the RFP.
Such addenda, if issued, will be posted at the following address listed below no later than 48
hours before the RFP closes: bids.ogdencity.com (which redirects to
http://bids.ogdencity.com/264/Purchasing).

Please note that it is the Responder’s responsibility to check this site frequently for addenda,
which may impact pricing, proposal requirements, and terms and/or conditions.

Submissions lacking one or more pieces of the requested information may be deemed non-
responsive. It is the Responder’s sole responsibility to read and interpret this RFP and the written
instructions contained herein.

The City reserves the right to reject any irregular or non-responsive submission and reserves the
right to waive any irregularity in submissions.

Responses to the RFP that are not received in the Ogden City Purchasing Office prior to the time
and date specified will be considered late. Late responses will not be considered for award. The
City reserves the right to reject any and all responses at the City’s sole discretion.

It is the Responder’'s responsibility to assure the delivery of its responses to Ogden City
Purchasing Department prior to or at the designated date and time. In order to facilitate review
and evaluation, please submit materials in the correct format as described in Section VI, Proposal
Requirements.

IX. General Terms

Ogden City reserves the right to accept or reject any and all proposals and to waive any informality
or technicality in proposals received, that best serves its convenience and/or is in the best interest
of the City.

The City reserves the right to issue contracts to multiple vendors.

Page 4

Iltem 4.

16



http://bids.ogdencity.com/264/Purchasing

Once submitted, all proposals, including attachments, supplementary materials, addenda, etc.
become the property of the City and will not be returned to the Responder.

Pursuant to the Utah Government Records Access and Management Act (GRAMA), records will
be considered public after the contract is awarded. If a Responder wishes to protect any records,
they are required to provide a written request for business confidentiality at the time the proposal
is submitted, to the Ogden City Recorder.

All costs related to the preparation of proposals and any related activities are the sole
responsibility of the Responder. No reimbursement will be made by Ogden City for any costs
incurred in preparing proposals.

Ogden City welcomes and encourages proposals from women and minority owned businesses.

No employee, officer, or agent of the City must participate in the selection, award, or
administration of a contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent
conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or agent,
any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization which employs
or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest in or a
tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract. The officers, employees, and
agents of the City must neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value
from contractors or parties to subcontracts.

Ogden City reserves the right to cancel or modify this request for proposal. There is no guarantee
that Ogden City will place the requested services under contract.

Page 5

Iltem 4.

17




Item 4.

18




Gity of Laguna Beach

Greative Placemaking Assessment
September 12, 2018

AEA Gonsulting




Table of Gontents

Introduction

Summary of Findings

Themes from Consultation

Cultural Asset Inventory

New Mixed-Use Cultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment
Alternative Placemaking Options

Next Steps

Appendices

Appendix |: Stakeholders Consulted
Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study Details

Iltem 4.

September 12, 201§ »




1. Introduction




Introduction

In August 2017, the City of Laguna Beach appointed AEA Consulting
to deliver a Creative Placemaking Assessment. The purpose of the
Assessment is to:

|.  Determine the feasibility and potential for the development of a
new, multi-use, flexible facility with performance and exhibit
capability, classroom and studio spaces, an outdoor plaza venue
and technical capability for digital programming.

2. Explore better uses of existing cultural spaces in Laguna Beach;
and

3. Assist the City in determining whether to pursue a public/private
partnership(s) to develop new, or retrofit existing, cultural
infrastructure.

The first part of this report summarizes findings from AEA’s research
and consultation. The second part presents an inventory of cultural
assets in Laguna Beach and Orange County, and details capacity
utilization of the primary cultural venues in Laguna Beach.The third

Iltem 4.

section contains the feasibility assessment of a new cultural facility,
and the final section explores additional Creative Placemaking
strategies to enhance Laguna Beach’s profile as a creative community.
A summary of the study’s process is included on the next slides.

The Creative Placemaking Assessment was overseen by Sian Poeschl,
Cultural Arts Manager for the City of Laguna Beach and the Cultural
Arts Steering Committee whose members are: Mayor Kelly Boyd,
Mayor Pro Tem Rob Zur Schmiede, Arts Commission member Suzi
Chauvel, and Planning Commission member Susan Whitin.

The AEA team for the assignment included Libby Ellis, Managing
Principal; Daniel Payne, Principal; Paul Parkhill, Senior Associate; and
Hannah Yudkin, Consultant. We extend our thanks to Sian, members
of the Arts Commission and the community of Laguna Beach for their
enthusiasm, ideas and support throughout the process.

September 12, 2018

22




Introduction
Process

Over the course of eight months, the AEA team:

 Conducted stakeholder consultation with 47 members of the
Laguna Beach community, including arts leaders, artists, business
owners, government representatives, developers, and other
community members (listed at Appendix I);

+ Undertook local market research, including benchmarking and a
cultural asset inventory of Laguna Beach and Orange County;

- Conducted a survey of Laguna Beach arts organizations with
facilities to understand current venue utilization;

- Surveyed additional arts organizations to understand their
programming calendars and space use needs;

- Developed case studies on trends in cultural facilities and creative
placemaking strategies nationally and internationally;

Presented case studies and sought input from the community in a
public Town Hall meeting on November 8, 2017;

Presented an Interim Summary Report at a public Options
Workshop on January 20, 2018;

Conducted an analysis of potential sites as to their suitability for a
new cultural facility or other placemaking initiatives;

Tested the feasibility of a new culture venue by developing a
robust model that demonstrates the financial and operational
implications;

Developed alternative Creative Placemaking Strategies;
Developed recommendations on next steps; and

Drafted and delivered the final Creative Placemaking Assessment.

Iltem 4.

September 12, 201§




Introduction
Process

The process involved three stages: |) Research & Consultation; 2) Options Analysis; and 3) Feasibility
Assessment & Recommendations

Phase 3: Feasibility

Phase 2: Options Analysis Assessment &
Recommendations

Phase |: Research and

Consultation

Stakeholder Consultation Options Development

Operating Plan

Local Market Research Site Options Analysis

Financial Analysis

Interim Summary Report

Cultural Asset Inventory R dati
ecommendations

Benchmarking & Case Study

Options Worksh
Development ptions VVorkshop

Final Report Delivery

Public Town Hall Meeting

Item 4.

September 12, 201§ 2.




2. Summary of Findings




Summary of Key Findings

Laguna Beach boasts unparalleled natural beauty and a proud history as a
creative community with unique cultural offerings. Many stakeholders feel,
however, that its creative identity is at risk and that there needs to be
additional investment in Creative Placemaking to bolster it.

Stakeholders are mixed about whether there is genuine need (demand) for
additional cultural infrastructure (supply) in Laguna Beach. Among those who
feel there is demand, opinions are mixed as to whether additional supply
should be new or adaptive reuse of existing facilities.

An assessment of the feasibility of a new, mixed-use cultural facility indicates
that a 24,850 sq. ft. venue would cost approximately $20 million to build, and
$2.6 million annually to operate.There are several risks to long-term viability:

* The venue would likely operate at a deficit of approximately $1.5 million
annually;

There is no clear workable site option for such a facility;

There may not be an adequate supply of cultural programming of the
appropriate quality in Laguna Beach to meet targets for venue utilization
and earned income, and therefore to justify the capital investment;

There is no obvious candidate to operate such a venue, with the possible
exception of the City of Laguna Beach. However, this scenario would
require the City to invest substantially in programming, staffing and
subsidizing the venue.

Iltem 4.

As an alternative to capital investment in a new, mixed-use cultural facility, the
Assessment recommends that the City explore the following Alternative
Creative Placemaking strategies:

«  Expand the Civic Arts District & strengthen as a designated, walkable
cultural precinct that links key cultural activation sites.

«  Improve utilization of and public access to Festival of the Arts site

- Designate two additional existing sites for cultural programming:

«  Main Beach Cobblestones

«  Village Entrance site

«  Animate the District with informal, spontaneous creative activity

«  Bring new artists and cultural programming into Laguna Beach through:
«  An enhanced public art program

«  AnArtist-in-Residence program

*  Leverage, where possible, public-private partnership opportunities

«  Streamline regulatory framework to support cultural activity.

September 12, 201§ 2




3. Themes from Gonsultation




Creative Placemaking Assessment
Themes from Gonsultation

Consultation indicated wide enthusiasm for Creative Placemaking in
Laguna Beach, especially for:

- Initiatives that enhance quality of life for residents
- Creating community focal points, places to gather downtown

- More outdoor, walkable places where informal creative activity
can happen

« More animation on or near the beach

- Upgrading and improving utilization of and access to the City’s
existing cultural facilities

- ‘“Raising the bar” on aesthetic quality — including design of the
public realm

- New cultural offerings and activities, both formal and informal
- Spaces and activities that help attract and retain youth

- Leveraging Laguna Beach’s beauty and climate

Opinions were mixed on whether there is demand for a new, mixed-
use cultural facility, with most people voicing support for more outdoor
programming, physical enhancements to the village, and adaptive re-use
of existing facilities where possible.

el

F

T .
ASHEGME LAL

Tewn

Iltem 4.

September 12, 2018

28




4. Gultural Asset Inventory




Iltem 4.

Gultural Asset Inventory
Overview

AEA undertook an analysis of cultural activities, not-for-profit cultural organizations, venues and their utilization in Laguna Beach
to understand the supply of cultural “content,” where cultural activities take place, and how often cultural venues are being
utilized throughout the year.

We analyzed:

« Number of cultural programs and events that occur throughout the year

« Number of not-for-profit organizations

* Venue ownership status

« Number of facilities used exclusively and non-exclusively for cultural activity
- Breakdown between commercial vs. non-commercial uses in cultural facilities
+ Orange County cultural facilities

The Cultural Asset Inventory then provides an overview and additional detail on the major not-for-profit cultural facilities —
including operator, uses, operating budget, utilization, and general observations.

] September 12, 2018

30




Iltem 4.

Gultural Asset Inventory
Laguna Beach Gultural Activities

In terms of cultural activities, from December 2016 to December 2017 Laguna Beach offered 146 discrete
arts and culture-focused programs and activities to residents and visitors, of which 7 are festivals.*

» The largest number of cultural programs occur in June (22); the fewest take place in November (10)

» These programs took place 360 days of the year, with many events often overlapping and almost 60%
occurring over the course in the summer months, May to September.

*This figure counts programs that span several days, such as an art exhibition, a festival, or a play’s run, as one single program. First Thursdays Art Walk is

.. counted once per month, as each is considered a “unique” program. Classes are not included in this figure. The 7/ festivals are Festival of Arts, Pageant of
'- the Masters, Laguna Art-A-Fair, Laguna Beach Music Festival, Laguna Dance Festival, Sawdust Art Festival, and Laguna Plein Air Painting Invitational. Please September 12, 2018 [
refer to Laguna Beach’'s monthly cultural calendars between December 2016 and December 201/, published by Laguna Beach Arts Alliance, for list of cultural ’

activities utilized to conduct analysis.



Gultural Asset Inventory

Not-for-profit Gultural Organizations

Iltem 4.

There are at least 2| not-for-profit cultural organizations in Laguna Beach. Eight of these are dedicated to performing
arts, 10 to visual arts, and 3 to other.Three organizations own their own venue.

Dedicated = Owns
Organization: Venue? = Venue? Venue Owner
Laguna Playhouse X City of Laguna Beach
Festival of the Arts, Inc. X City of Laguna Beach
Community and Susi Q Center X City of Laguna Beach
Laguna Art-a-Fair X Tivoli Two
No Square Theater X American Legion
Laguna Art Museum X
Sawdust Art Festival X
Laguna College of Art and Design X

Community Art Project

First Thursday’s Art Walk
Laguna Beach Arts Alliance
Laguna Beach Chamber Singers
Laguna Beach Chorale

Laguna Beach Live!

Laguna Beach Plein Air Painters Assoc.

Laguna Beach Sister Cities Assoc.
Laguna Community Concert Band
Laguna Craft Guild

Laguna Dance Festival
LagunaTunes Community Chorus
LOCA Arts Education

2222 2Z2Z2Z2Z2Z2ZZZZZKKXXZ2ZZZZ

September 12, 2018

32




Guitural Asset Inventory
Laguna Beach Gultural Venues

Laguna Beach contains venues dedicated exclusively to arts and
cultural activities, as well as others (parks, hotels, commercial art
galleries) that are used non-exclusively for cultural activities.*

The inventory reveals that:

« There are at least 136 venues that serve arts and culture in
Laguna Beach, including those used exclusively and non-
exclusively for arts and culture.

« These include 53 galleries, 24 hotels, 23 parks, | 3 mixed-use -
spaces (e.g. restaurants, bars), | | performing arts spaces,and |2 >
additional other venues.

.. *This work builds upon research found in the 2016 Cultural Plan — Appendix, and the 201 | Laguna Beach Alliance for the Arts Inventory
= of Cultural ArtVenues in Laguna Beach. For a full inventory of cultural assets, see Appendix.

Item 4.

Galleries
53
(39%)

Hotels
pr:
(18%)

September 12, 2018

33




Gu

Item 4.

[tural Asset Inventory

Laguna Beach Guitural Venues

The |36 venues are evenly split between those dedicated specifically to arts and cultural activities, and those that
are not.

Of the total, 94 (69%) are commercial enterprises, and 42 (31%) are non-commercial.

Of the 69 venues dedicated specifically to arts and cultural activities, the majority (53, or 78%) are commercial
art galleries, while 8 (12%) serve as a permanent home for Laguna-based not-for-profit arts organizations.

The slides that follow provide detail on the largest venues dedicated to not-for-profit arts organizations.

68 68

A A

® Exclusively Cultural Venues = Non-Exclusively Cultural Venues Commercial = Non-Commercial September 12, 2018
- )

34




Gultural Asset Inventory
Festival of the Arts, Inc.

Overview

+ Comprises Irvine Bowl, Forum Theatre and Festival
grounds

+ Home to annual Pageant of the Masters and juried
Festival Art Show 7/1 — 8/31

- Site owned by City of Laguna Beach; Festival of the
Arts, Inc. has long-term lease. Festival sub-leases
Tivoli Terrace (food & beverage space) to private
operator

- Pageant, founded in 1928, major tourist draw:
majority of visitors come from outside Laguna

Beach/Orange County: Los Angeles County (20%), e

San Diego County (11%), Out of State (I 1%),
Riverside County (5%)

Budget size: $8 million (2016)

Capacity: 2,600 (Irvine Bowl); 230 (Forum Theatre)
Average annual attendance: 209,000

Iltem 4.

September 12, 2018

35




Iltem 4.

Gultural Asset Inventory
Festival of the Arts, Inc.

Utilization AEA Observations
FoA has exclusive access 5/1 — 9/22 - Both venues incompatible with needs of Laguna Beach
Irvine Bowl available to outside users 68 days as per lease (9/23 cultural not-for-profits — but potential for redevelopment.
— 12/1) « Irvine Bowl, at 2,600 seats, appropriate for amplified music &
Forum Theatre available to outside users 219 days (9/30 — 4/30) performance; too large for most Laguna Beach cultural not-for-
Festival grounds available to outside users 219 days (9/30 — profits; does not support dance, unamplified music / theatre.
4/30), otherwise as PUb“C park 9am — 5pm during those months « Forum Theatre requires renovation — designed for puppet

«  Outside users must be not-for-profits theater; lacks dressing rooms, “green” room, rehearsal space,

+  Low utilization — most performing arts venues aim for sprung floor and stage wings (to accommodate dance), state-of-

minimum 70% utilization the-art lighting & technology, ADA compliance.

- Potential for higher utilization of all venues during non-

Forum | Festival Festival months, but facilities condition, lack of available

Venue: Irvine Bowl | Theatre = Grounds lighting / rigging / sound / tech (which results in increased
# Days Potentially Available 364 364 364 cost and logistical complexity for outside users) reduce
Utilization: demand (e.g., recent issues with mold in Forum Theatre
Festival of the Arts® 150 159 147 forced cancellation of bookings by outside users).
Outside Users 4 6 10

+ FoA not incentivized to increase utilization by outside users
due to obligation to maintain grounds; requirement to
sublease only to not-for-profits; and financial self-sufficiency.

Total: |54 165 157
Utilization Rate 42.3% 453% 43.1%

September 12, 2018

36




Gultural Asset Inventory
Laguna Playhouse

Overview

 Oldest continually operating theatre on the West
Coast — six mainstage productions annually

 Audience members reside primarily in the 92651 ZIP
code, with 22% of ticket holders participating in
subscription packages

Utilization
* In 2017, the Playhouse had very high 96% utilization
rate
 Main renters are Laguna Dance Festival and Laguna
Beach Live!
# of Days Programmed by : :
Name of Space iPIayhouse (including load- :# of Days Rented \# of Days Dark

|
lin / load-out)
Theatre : 340

|4 | |

.. *Note that a remodel of the facility has been approved by the Planning Commission in June
= 2018.

Iltem 4.

Budget size: $4.7 million (2016)
Capacity: 420 Seats (Theatre)
Average annual attendance: 92,000

AEA Observations

« High utilization

Condition of building has taken a toll as a result
Limited rehearsal facilities

Lobby / patron amenities worn out / dated
Relatively high rental rate compared to some peers
Parking an issue

A

September 12, 2018

37




Guitural Asset Inventory
Sawdust Art Festival

Overview

« Non-juried festival taking place over nine weeks in
the summer and for five consecutive weekends in
the winter, offering classes year-round

* Local artists only

« Own the prominent, Laguna Canyon Road site

+ Audience resides primarily in 92651 ZIP code

Budget size: $2.1 million (2016) tem ®
Capacity: 2,500 (Grounds); 10 (SAC Classroom); 2 (Glass-Blowing
Area); 12 (Healy House); 2-4 (Ceramics Center)

Average annual attendance: 132,325

September 12, 2018 7 s




Gultural Asset Inventory
Sawdust Art Festival

Iltem 4.

Utilization
- Sawdust Festival Grounds utilized 2/3 of the year, AEA Observations
including load-in and load-out; smaller spaces reserved « Excess capacity in outdoor spaces in non-festival

for classes; used about 30% of the time during the year

* Spaces rented only to cultural users; main renters .
include Laguna Beach Arts Alliance, LOCA, and Sister .

Cities

# of Days Pr?gram.med E# of Days E# of Days
Name of Space by Sawdust (including 'Rented ' Dark

\load-in / load-out) ! !
Sawdust Festival Grounds 1 ______ 2 ___nma___ ! 120 __
Sawdust SAC Classroom | 120 ______ T S N .-
Glass-Blowing Area_ L_______100_______ 4____1%1___4___;§¥i___
Heally House _______l60_______ Vo na___ 1 265 __
Ceramics Center | 120 : n/a ! 245

months

Rental opportunities unavailable to non-arts renters
Potential to serve community more by making grounds
available in off-season; however, as organization owns
site there is no obligation nor incentive to do so

September 12, 2018 3

39




Guitural Asset Inventory
Gommunity and Susi () Senior Genter

Overview

+ Founded 2009

Gallery Q — 6 exhibitions annually
Meeting rooms, art studios, dance studios, classrooms
Owned and operated by the City
Regarded as “filling a gap” for arts organizations that
lack a facility -

._. *Note that the Susi Q Center is often closed for additional days in any given year. In November 2017/, for example, the Center was closed 3 additional days. As such, 296 is

.- likely a higher estimate than the actual amount of days available for programs and rentals in any given year.

Budget size: n/a
Capacity: n/a
Average annual attendance: 700-800 weekly

Item 4.

September 12, 2018 7 4




Gultural Asset Inventory
Gommunity and Susi () Senior Genter

Utilization

« High utilization — approximately 174 events weekly

« Spaces fully utilized Monday-Friday and at capacity
during core hours 9am-4pm; has turned down requests
for space rentals

« Some rental availability on Saturday; closed on Sundays

* Spaces rented to LagunaTunes, LOCA, Laguna Beach
Live!, and others

AEA Observations

« Parking restrictions

« High utilization

 High quality spaces

+ Addition of auditorium / performance space could
further serve demand

._. *Note that the Susi Q Center is often closed for additional days in any given vear. In November 2017/, for example, the Center was closed 3 additional days. As such, 296 is

Iltem 4.

Budget size: n/a
Capacity: n/a

Average annual attendance: 700-800 weekly

# of Days Programmed # of Days # of
Name of Space Capacity by your org. per year  # of Days Rented Weekly

) ) Dark

(incl. load-in / load-out) Programs
Art Room n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Community Room n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Dance Studio #| n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Dance Studio #2 n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Game room n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Laguna room n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Tech room n/a 296in/a 68in/a
Multi-purpose room n/a 296in/a 68in/a

| Total

1 74|

likely a higher estimate than the actual amount of days available for programs and rentals in any given vear.

September 12, 2018 7 4




cllltlll'al Asset I“ve“tory Capacity: 1010 (Museum); 120 (Steele Gallery)
Laguna Art Museum

Overview

*See Appendix for 2017/ list of exhibitions

Item 4.

Budget size: $2 million (2016)

Average annual attendance: 40,000

Founded in 1920 with focus on works of art created by
California artists or that represent the history of the
state

Collection of 3,000 objects

8-10 exhibitions annually, complemented by education/
family programs, films, tours, special events

Recent successful public art installations/performances
on beach

Visitors reside primarily in 92651 ZIP code

-----
o

-

= st
_'- r'i‘ -

.,
i &j ﬁ fﬁhﬁ ;'Hmnmmmi‘im‘; .

September 12, 2018 3 .




Gultural Asset Inventory
Laguna Art Museum

Budget size: $2 million (2016)
Capacity: 1010 (Museum); 120 (Steele Gallery)
Average annual attendance: 40,000

Iltem 4.

Utilization AEA Observations

- Exhibitions on view 280 days in 2017 (about 76%)* .

 Main renters include Laguna Beach Live! (~12 events

annually), Laguna Dance Festival (|1 event), Pacific .

Symphony (| event), Laguna College of Art & Design (|

event), and other private events .

Most appropriate for smaller-scale performances /
screenings

Dense exhibition calendar, making rental of gallery
spaces to outside users challenging

Lack of parking is limiting

! |
\# of Days  |# of Days

T fP i
ype of Frogramming User : Programmed |Rented
1 ! !
Exhibitions___________ Museum ________________ L2801
Opening Receptions ___Museum_________________ R S A
Organized Tours Museum : 69 :
== ST === ._ _______ +—-———_—————————————————— —I __________ | __________
Family art studios 'Museum [ 12 |
Summer camp days 'Museum 10 T
Summer camp days L Jseum R A I,
L ectures Museum L |7 !
__________________ B A
Special Bvents Museum . R N S
Evening for educators ___\Museum ________________ LS
Fms___ . Museun | R
Joint Program ________ \Museum / Laguna Beach Livel |\ ___10____!_________
Rehearsal ___________llaguna Dance Festivals o L .
Joint Program First Thursday Art Walk —_Ilr : | |
____________________ 2 sy A e L
Rented Space_________ \Private Event (compensated) _ | _________ 22
Rented Space : Private Event (not compensated) : 10

*See Appendix for 2017/ list of exhibitions

September 12, 2018 3




Gultural Asset Inventory
Laguna Gollege of Art and Design

Overview

+ Accredited not-for-profit college providing degrees at the
undergraduate and graduate levels in the visual arts

« Operates two campuses on Canyon Road and a gallery in
town that showcases student artwork

- Students live both in Laguna Beach and surrounding areas to
the north

- Newly-opened gallery at The Hive

Utilization

- Utilization data unavailable

+ Classrooms / meeting rooms rented exclusively to arts users
at no charge

+ Available only during summer months when class not in
session

+ Outside users include LOCA and Laguna Beach Live!

Budget size: $15.7 million (2016) o

Capacity: 50 (Gallery), 60 (Housing), 200 (Main
Campus), 85 (East Campus)
Average annual enrollment: 496

AEA Observations

+ Main spaces are small, include classrooms and small meeting
rooms

- However, meets need part of year for affordable space for
meetings

ltg' A

(o .'ml -

i

G

September 12, 2018 7 .




Gultural Asset Inventory
Laguna Art-A-Fair / Tivoli Too! Site

Overview

* Juried fine arts festival in summer (66 days), with daily
art workshops, live music performances, and food

« Art-a-Fair rents venue

« Operates separate foundation that facilitates art
education and sponsorship in Southern California

Utilization

- Utilization data unavailable

 Art-A-Fair main lessee in July and August

* In turn,Art-a-Fair rents exclusively to arts users during
the festival period (LPAPA rents once per year)

- Site utilized and marketed almost exclusively for
weddings during the non-festival season

Budget size: n/a fem s

Capacity: 50 — 300 guests for meetings
Average annual attendance: 50,000

AEA Observations

Prime location

Facility in need of upgrades

Site requires total build-out and tear down of Art-a-
Fair exhibit space every season

Some performance space for intimate gathering

Live music prohibited

Depending on ownership status, could be opportunity
to re-develop site to focus on cultural / community
events beyond just weddings

September 12, 2018 3

45




Iltem 4.

Laguna Beach Gultural Assets Budget size: $330,823 (2016)

Number of performances annually: 34-47

I.aguna Bea(:h |.iVE! Average annual attendance: ~5,700

Overview
o . | . . . . i iDid you sell out? :
Laguna BeaCh lee' Brlngs I|Ve music, from laZZ to Locations of Performances :Elet;z?’:a:fces i(Approximation fine, EFurther Details
classical to rock, to Laguna . |too) |
. . . . Laguna Art Musuem I A Lo 29% AChamber Music___________
+ High-quality, nationally recognized performers Rose Garden at Laguna Hotel | ¢ s T 00% Ve |
. . Seven Degrees I 6 : 90% 'Winter Jazz
* No dedicated venue; LBL partners with venues all over Seven Derecs. Lol o0 L Beneit Comer
: | : IMusic Festival, co-presented
the Clty for Performances | 3 : Ewith Philharmonic Society of
Laguna Playhouse __________ | s 60% ______ {Orange County. - _________
AEA Observations LCAD Parking Lot o A 00% _____\BuegrassFestval
« Of the 30 concerts in 2017 where sell-out rates are Montage ' _______ 00% \Outdoor Concert
known, just under 90% were sold out — indicating a SO e s S O free Moty Coneert .
) . ) | | | | ! eg onc.ert Coinciding with
healthy interest in programming SeQ e IS S Musicfesthval ___________ |
« Given lack of space, substantial organizational focus / i 4 | :
. . Woman's Club / Private Home ,________________ [ nfa_______ Music Insights Adult Education_
energy spent securing locations for programs | | )
. Artist's Theater (at High school : n/a : n/a 'n/a
- Potentially unmet demand Aol S R P
The Ranch i n/a i n/a ;n/a

September 12, 2018 3 4




Laguna Beach Gultural Assets
Laguna Dance Festival

Overview

+ Founded in 2006 with mission to “present world-class dance
performance, increase public appreciation for the art, and
provide quality dance education.”

- Itinerant organization with no permanent home. In 2017,
performed at Laguna Art Museum, Laguna Playhouse, [seven
degrees], Laguna Beach High School, Dawson Cole Fine Art,
and saltfineart.

« Presents high-quality, nationally recognized performers (Paul
Taylor Dance Company, dancers from Joffrey Ballet, American
Ballet Theater) & master classes

- Some performances free, i.e., during ArtWalk

Iltem 4.

Budget size: $324,000 (2017)

Number of programs annually: 15-17
Average annual attendance: n/a

September 12, 2018 7 =




Laguna Beach Gultural Assets
Laguna Dance Festival

Uti

ilization
Number of annual tickets sold and attendees
not available

 According to IRS Form 990 (2016) 3,000

AE

people are served

A Observations

« Short runs — some programs only |-2

performances

Substantial organizational focus / energy spent
securing locations for programs

Small organization with no venue management
experience

Track record of successfully presenting
contemporary dance performances outdoors
in Laguna Beach, near beach / boardwalk, as
opposed to in bespoke, traditional performing
arts venue

Budget size: $324,000 (2017)

Number of programs annually: 15-17
Average annual attendance: n/a

Item 4.

;;;;;

' &
/ o

s

1 £ .. ) r \ \‘
! [ ' 3
) ' }
L\ .
<. LyDanL e ¥
< s
-
\ | [o¥

\«\. WA

U/—\l \lrﬂlF

..’ /p”'

September 12, 2018 3

48




Orange Gounty Gultural Assets

Iltem 4.

AEA researched the cultural infrastructure landscape in Orange County and spoke with external stakeholders from
The Bowers Museum, South Coast Repertory, and The Source, in order to better understand arts and cultural assets
across the county.™ Our research revealed the following key findings:

Major cultural venues include the Segerstrom Center for the Arts (Costa Mesa), South Coast Repertory Theatre
(Costa Mesa), Orange County Museum of Art (Newport Beach), and The Irvine Museum (Irvine).

Segerstrom Center for the Arts is considered the premier County venue to present touring performances and
performers (Broadway tours, classical music concerts, etc.).

There are recent museum developments focused on California art:
The Hilbert Museum of California Art at Chapman College (Orange, CA) — opened March 2016

Transfer of The Irvine Museum’s collection to the new Irvine Museum Collection at UCI — November 2016; new museum facility planned
Pockets of cultural activity appear strong in places where real estate prices are lower (i.e., Santa Ana).

Orange County residents tend to be loyal to the cities where they reside and are more likely to patronize local
cultural activities.

In Laguna Beach, Laguna Art Museum and Laguna Playhouse are viewed especially favorably.

[ *Additional Orange County cultural venues were contacted, but unresponsive. Capacity utilization information was unavailable. September 12, 2018 .
, J

49




Orange Gounty Gultural Assets (cont’d)

Iltem 4.

Listed below are the major cultural assets in Orange County, which represent a mix of visual arts, performing arts, and
other mixed-use spaces. Venues that serve several functions and are not used exclusively for cultural activities are highlighted in blue.

Facility / Space_ _ __ _____ ___________ Location_ __________ Primary Purpose Type ______________
Anaheim Convention Center lAnaheim 1Performing Arts 1Commercial____
Anaheim Packing House __ __ __________ Mnaheim 1Other ______ ACommercial___________
Camino Real Playhouse_ _ _____________ 1San Juan Capistrano _ __ _ _ APerforming Arts INot-For-Profit _ __ ______
Qasa o ___ ACostaMesa _________ APerforming Arts |\ Commercial_ __________
Cerritos Center for the Performing Arts _ ___ _ ACerritos __ __________ APerforming Arts INot-ForProfit _________
Fullerton Museum Center _ __ __________ Afdllerton__ __ ________ MWVisual Arts___ _ INot-For-Profit | __ ______
Heritage Museum of Orange County_ _ __ ___ MsantaAna___________ AOther ______ ANotfor-Profit __ _______
Hilbert Museum of California At _ _____ ___ Orange ___________ Wisual Arts____ INot-For-Profit _ __ ______
House of Blues __ __ _ __ ____________ Mnaheim____________ APerforming Arts_ 1Commercial | __________
Irvine Barclay Theatre_ _______________ Mrvine . APerforming Arts_INot-For-Profit _ __ ______
Marconi Automotive Museum _ __________ Austin _____________ 1Other ______ ANot-For-Profit _________
Maverick Theater _ _____ ____________ Afdllerton_ __ _________ APerforming Arts {Not-For-Profit __ _____ __
Muzeo Museum and Cultural Center \Anaheim____________ \Other ______ \Not-For-Profit _ ________
OceanInstitute ______ ____________ ADanaPoint __________ 1Other ______ ANot-For-Profit _________
Orange County Center for Contemporary Art _ 1Santa Ana AVisual Arts____ INot-For-Profit _ __ ______
Orange County Museum of At __________ INewport Beach _______ WVisual Arts____ INot-For-Profit _ ________
Richard Nixon Presidential Library & Museum__ 1Yorbalinda__________ AOther ______ ANotfor-Profit _________
Segerstrom Center forthe Arts__________ tCostalesa  _ _______ APerforming Arts INot-For-Profit _________
Soka Performing Arts Center . ______ \Aliso Viejo __________ |Performing Arts INot-For-Profit _________
South Coast Repertory  ______________ \CostalMesa __________ | Performing Arts |Not-For-Profit _ ________
The Bowers Museurn _____ ___________ Santa Ana_ __________ \Visual Arts ___ INot-ForProfit _________
The Irvine Museum Collection___________ rvine_ . \Visual Arts__ __ INot-For-Profit _________
ThesSource __ __ ___ ____________ \BuenaPark _________ \Other ______ \Commercial ___________
The Yost ISanta Ana 1Other tCommercial

September 12, 2018 3 s




9. New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment




Iltem 4.

New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

This section explores the feasibility of developing a new mixed-use, flexible cultural facility in Laguna Beach.
The facility would have performance and exhibit capability, classroom and studio spaces, an outdoor plaza
venue, and the technical capability for digital programming.

To determine feasibility and long-term viability of such a venue, items considered include:
» Functional space requirements
- Demand for such a venue
* Programming strategy
- Site options
» Annual income and expenditure
- Management model
- Capital cost

- Potential funding strategies

September 12, 2018 J -




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Goncept

The new Cultural Facility is envisioned as a new community
destination for Laguna Beach — an active gathering place for both
residents and visitors that reflects and projects the city’s identity as a
creative community. It would be a flexible, multi-purpose cultural
venue that could serve as an attractive village focal point and a
destination for both formal and informal cultural activity.

Key elements of the facility include:
 400-seat outdoor, flexible amphitheater space

- Public plaza for public gathering, dining, and temporary public
art installations

- Lobby / event space with capability for art display

+ Outdoor film screening capability

* Indoor-outdoor café

- Flexible creative production spaces

- “Back of house” spaces — conference room, offices, storage, etc.

Potential Uses

« Music, Theatre and Dance Performance
- Rehearsals

« Artist-in-Residence Program
 Temporary Public Art Installations

- Art Exhibitions

« Film Screenings

« Poetry Readings

« Indoor-Outdoor Café / Food Trucks

- Private Rental Events

- Farmers’ Markets

Iltem 4.

September 12, 2018 3

53




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment &
Preliminary Space Program

A preliminary space program suggests an initial requirement of 24,850 gross sq. ft. (19,310 net sq. ft.), plus an additional 3,000
sq. ft. dedicated to the public plaza.*

Performance Spaces Production Spaces SPAGE SUMMARY:
Performance Spaces 8,385
- 400-seat outdoor - Rehearsal hall Eomt of House Public Areas -
amphitheater - Studio Space (With room for Performer / Crew Supported Backstage Areas 2.340
+ Lighting control + audio up to 3 artists to work) Production / Rehearsal Space 6325
booth R Loading dock Administrative Space 2.470
- Associated storage « Performer / crew support TOTAL GROSS AREA 24.850 | GSF

Front of House Public Areas Administrative / Work Spaces

- Flexible event / lobby space * Conference room

- Indoor-outdoor café + Office space for |10 employees
- Box office

- Catering kitchen
* Public restrooms

Outdoor Plaza

 Gathering area
« Embedded infrastructure

research, reflecting the cultural asset inventory and the needs described to us by stakeholders and

.. *The size and scope of the facility is responsive to the findings from our consultation and additional
-

=

L] community members.

September 12, 2018 J =




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment e
Site Options Analysis

The following ten sites were analyzed for their
suitability to accommodate cultural activities of
various types and scales. Given the footprint of the
proposed new cultural facility, only three of these
options — Lot | |, Lot 12,and the ACTV Lot — are
large enough to accommodate this specific plan.

|. South Coast Theater Building

2. Laguna Drug Building

3. Wells Fargo Bank Building

4. ActV Lot

5. Lot || (Forest/Laguna Canyon)

6. Water Treatment Tower (“Historic Digester”)
7. Lot |2 (Lumberyard Lot)

8. Festival of Arts Site Tennis Courts

9. Verizon / General Telephone Building

10. Congregational Church

Each site is discussed in the slides that follow.

September 12, 2018 3 ==




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Site Options Analysis: South Goast Theater Building

Item 4.

Address: 162 South Coast Highway

Current Use: Vacant
Size: 9,381 SF
Owner: Leslie Blumberg

Pros:

* Prime Coast Highway location near Main
Beach
*  Community desire to restore cinema use

Cons:

* Private owner asking very high price ($16M%*)

*  Questions about compatibility with other
cultural uses

* Inadequate parking

Assessment:

*  Owner does not appear inclined to sell at a
market price

* Cost and configuration of property are more
likely to require new cinema use rather than
creative or cultural uses

*as of January 2018

September 12, 2018 3

56




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment
Site Options Analysis: Laguna Drug Building

i

Item 4.

Address: 239 Broadway St

Current Use: Laguna Drug
Size: 14,378 SF
Owner: Fritz Duda

Pros:

* Central location

* Appropriate scale

* High ceilings/open floor plan/wide spans
*  Ample light

Cons:

* Private, out-of-town ownership
* Unclear path for lease or acquisition

Assessment:

*  Good potential for a mix of cultural uses;
could accommodate a range of performance,
community, and flex uses

* Not clear whether owners would consider a
non-retail use

*  Questions remain about lease or acquisition
options and costs

September 12, 2018 3

57




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment -
o bdne

u —
B oE

Address: 260 Ocean Ave
Current Use: Wells Fargo Bank
Size: 30,425 SF

Owner: Wells Fargo

Pros:

* Ample, underutilized site that already
accommodates arts and community uses

* Central location

* Good parking

Cons:

* No indication from Wells Fargo that building is
available for lease or sale

* Potential environmental abatement scope

Assessment:

*  Wells Fargo is already an asset to the visual
arts community and Laguna Beach residents,
providing exhibit and meeting spaces

* Retrofitting the building to accommodate
performing arts uses would require the bank
to vacate the space, and could represent an
expensive renovation

September 12, 2018 4 =




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment
Site Options alysi

be

Item 4.

Current Use: Municipal Parking and Bus Depot
Size: 241,791 SF
Owner: City of Laguna Beach

. Act V I.Ot Address: 1900 Laguna Canyon Rd

Pros:

Large site

City ownership

Scale potentially allows for a range of cultural
uses while still preserving space for cars and
buses

Cons:

Isolated; no complementary uses / supporting
infrastructure

Disconnected from downtown

Not accessible by foot

Existing parking and bus depot uses critical,
especially in summer

Assessment:

Isolation & lack of connection to Civic Arts
District and downtown = risk

September 12, 2018 4

59




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment e
Site Options Analysis: Lot 11

(Forest / Laguna Canyon)

=
L

]

Address: 551 Forest Ave / 625 Laguna Canyon Rd
Current Uses: Parking lot / city maintenance
Size: 175,183 SF (including maintenance areas)
Owner: City of Laguna Beach

Pros:

* Ample site at crossroads of downtown and
Civic Arts District

* Scale permits a variety of cultural options
while preserving parking

Cons:

 Existing parking for 165 cars

* Part ofVillage Entrance Plan, which would
reduce parking for new landscaping and may
limit cultural use options

Assessment:

* Strong potential to realize a range of cultural
uses while creating a new “town square”

* Potential to create new connections between
downtown/beach areas, Civic Arts District and
Laguna Canyon

* May not be possible to amend Village Entrance
plan at this point

September 12, 2018 4 &




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment e

Site Options alysis: Water Treatment Tower

OQY

Address: 1635 Laguna Canyon Rd
Current Use: Storage
Owner: City of Laguna Beach

Pros:
* Underutilized public building
* Part of historic fabric of Laguna Beach

Cons:

*  Small structure

*  Unusual footprint

* Restoration/clean-up of building may be costly

Assessment:

* The building is not large or versatile enough to
meet most of the cultural needs identified by
Laguna Beach residents and cultural
organizations

* Particularly in conjunction with a larger
cultural space project within Lot || or Lot 12,
the building may have potential as an exhibit or
public art space

* May not be possible to amend Village Entrance
plan at this point

September 12, 2018 4 &




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Item 4.

Address: 551 Forest Avenue
Current Use: Parking
Size: 28,768 SF

Owner: City of Laguna Beach

Pros:

* ldeal location

*  Ample enough to accommodate program /
cultural space opportunities

Cons:

* Existing parking for 84 cars

* Part of the Village Entrance Plan, which would
reduce parking for new landscaping and may
limit cultural use options

Assessment:

» Strong potential to realize a range of cultural
uses while creating a new town square

* Potential to create new connections between
the downtown/beach areas, Civic Arts District
and Laguna Canyon

* May not be possible to amend Village Entrance
plan at this point

September 12, 2018 4 -




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment e
Site optiOIlS Alla|y3i8: TelllliS cﬂlll‘t (FEStival Of the AI’tS Site) Address: 650 Laguna Canyon Rd.

— S— Current Use: Tennis Courts
o in i, W Owner: City of Laguna Beach

%Y >

Pros:
* Good location

Cons:

* Active tennis courts

* On Festival of Arts grounds

* Site may not be big enough to accommodate
all prospective users

* Inadequate parking

Assessment:
* The relatively small scale of the site and the

fact that it sits on Festival of Arts grounds
may be limiting factors

September 12, 2018 4 &




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment e

Site Options Analysis: Verizon / General Telephone Building  Address: 295 Broadway st

Current Use: Switching station

| T AN
S o | \ \"" ,fvi Size: 8,495 SF

Owner: Verizon

Pros:

* Historic art deco building
*  Prime location

Cons:

* Unclear whether Verizon plans to sell building

* Configuration and scale of building may
preclude some cultural uses

Assessment:

* Too small to accommodate program, and
questions remain about how the site might be
acquired, the physical limitations of the interior
(particularly for performing arts uses), and the
costs of retrofitting the building

September 12, 2018 4 6.




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Site Options Analysis: Gongregational Church

Item 4.

Address: 340 St.Ann’s Dr.

Current Use: Church

Size: Sanctuary/Bridge Hall capacity of ~300
Owner: Church Neighborhood

Pros:
* Space currently rented out to community and
arts groups at affordable rates

Cons:
*  Church uses will take priority
*  Not centrally located

Assessment:

* The church represents an existing asset to
Laguna Beach artists and residents, but is likely
too small for many of the proposed cultural
uses

* Active church use limits availability and
flexibility for range of cultural uses

September 12, 2018 4

65




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment
Operating Income and Expenses — Global Assumptions

AEA built a financial model to project a pro forma operating budget
for the proposed facility. The income and expense projections are
based on the following global assumptions:

All figures are in 2018 dollars; inflation is excluded in order to
highlight underlying impacts of key business drivers.

The facility would be open and fully operational in 2022.

The facility would be open to the public 347 days of the year,
closed July 4, Thanksgiving Day, and two weeks during winter
holidays.

The third year of operations (2024) is considered the “stable
year” — when visitation reaches normalized levels after an opening
year “bounce;” venue rental business is established in the
marketplace; and any post-opening issues with building operations
are resolved.

The model assumes 87 number of private event rentals annually,
with a mixed fee schedule for different space and user types (see
Appendix for detail).

Benchmark Data

Benchmark data were drawn from:

San Jose Theatre
La Mirada

Art on the Outside Public Art Program
Fine Arts Museums of San Francisco
Susi Q Community Center

Pacific Amphitheater

Pearson Park Amphitheater

Solvang Festival Theater

Irvine Bowl

Fullerton Museum

Laguna Art Museum

Segerstrom Center for the Arts
South Coast Repertory

Bowers Museum

Iltem 4.

Benchmarks were selected based on:

Similarity to the proposed facility

Orange County or greater California
marketplace

Data availability

Additional sources for information
include ISPA, eVenues, Laguna Beach’s
adopted budget FY17-FY19, PNP Staffin
Group, Form 990s, and others. All data
sources are noted where necessary or
indicated in the appendix.

0a

September 12, 2018 4 &




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Programming Assumptions

Amphitheater

The model assumes that the amphitheater would feature a range of events
across dance, theater, music, performance art, spoken word, and more. These
events are categorized as:

* Productions - Events entirely produced and co-produced by the facility’s
artistic staff.

* Presentations - Presented performances that are produced by outside arts
organizations (i.e., regional or national music, theatre and dance
organizations) but that take place in the new facility.

« “Light touch” programs — film screenings, lectures, community events

Between 99 and 107 total events would take place annually in the
amphitheater space, which would also be available for private events when not
in use for cultural programming.The model assumes 87 rentals annually (25%
utilization). After taking into account all curated programs, load-in and load-
out, and rentals, the space would be utilized 85% of all available days.

It is assumed that many shows would be free of charge or low cost, to ensure
the facility is accessible to the community. Presenters would have control over
their ticket pricing.

Iltem 4.

Public Programs

Public programs that could take place in the facility include talks and panel
discussions that may be related to scheduled performances, or topics of
relevance to the community.

Public Art

The facility would support an expansion of the City’s public art program.This
would require hiring a dedicated public art curator as well as additional annual
programming investment.

Artist-in-Residency Program

The facility would have studio space that could support an artist-in-residency
program.The model assumes|-3 artists-in-residence per season for a total of
|0 weeks.The program would offer studio space inside of the facility and a
daily stipend; housing would not be provided.

See Appendix for detailed programming assumptions.

September 12, 2018 4 &




Operational & Financial Feasibility
Management & Staffing Plan

The new cultural facility would require a total of 14 full-time
equivalent staff — 8 administrative and programming staff and 6
dedicated to facilities operations. Certain administrative functions
such as finance, IT and human resources administration could
potentially be outsourced or handled by the City, depending on the
operating and governance model chosen.

The staffing model does not assume full-time event security guards
and ushers, but rather contract labor as needed.

A security manager would be stationed on site full time, and a state-
of-the-art security system is envisioned for the facility.

In terms of the sequence of staff recruitment, it is assumed that the
Director of Public Programs / Public Art and the Director of
Production be appointed first, followed by Manager, Event Sales, and
Facilities Director. Remaining staff could be appointed 6 months
prior to the facility opening. See Appendix 2 for full detail of HR costs
and benefits.

Iltem 4.

Annual Salary Number of FTE
Admin. & Public Programming

Director of Public Programs / Public Art $100,000 |
Director of Production $100,000 |
Administrative Assistant $50,000 |
Marketing Manager $60,000 |
Manager, Sponsorships $90,000 |
Manager; Event Sales $85,000 |
Events Operations Manager $66,000 |
Events Booker $55,000 |
Facilities Director / Director of Facility Operations $110,000 |
Facility Maintenance Technician $69,000 |
Front of House Manager $80,000 |
Back of House Manager $/5,000 |
Box Office Staff / Visitor Services (| FT) $45,000 |
Manager, Security $/2,000 |

September 12, 2018 § ¢




| Feasibility

Financial Snapshot

inancia

Operational & F

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5

Income

Rentals $601.5 $ 603.4 $6103 $617.6 $ 623.0
Programming Income (Ticketing) 417.7 4124 4104 4114 4124
F&B (cafe and lunch room) 385 389 39.2 39.5 39.8
Total Earned Income 1,057.7 1,054.7 1,059.9 1,068.6 1,075.3
Expenses

Program Expenses

Programming - Curated Shows $7157 $ 686.0 $677.3 $ 688.3 $ 6994
Programming - Curated Shows (Support Costs) 37.5 36.8 36.5 36.6 36.8
Programming - Public Art 156.0 156.0 156.0 156.0 156.0
Programming - Residency 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0 24.0
Program Expenses 933.2 902.8 893.8 904.9 916.2
G&A

Salaries $ 1,057.0 $ 1,057.0 $ 1,057.0 $ 1,057.0 $ 1,057.0
Benefits 297.1 307.8 318.8 330.3 342.2
Total HR Costs 1,354.1 1,364.8 1,375.8 1,387.3 1,399.2
Training, Travel and Dues $2.1 $2.1 $2.1 $ 2.1 $2.1
Natural Gas 3.7 37 37 37 3.7
Electricity 43.1 43.1 43.1 43.1 43.1
Water 10.8 10.8 10.8 10.8 10.8
Telephone 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7
Materials and Supplies 124 124 124 2.4 2.4
General Insurance 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8 4.8
Printing 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8 13.8
Postage 59 59 59 59 59
Maintenance & Custodial (Indoors) 81.9 81.9 81.9 81.9 81.9
Outside Landscaping & Maintenace 23.1 23.1 23.1 23.1 23.1
Additional Indoor Maintenace 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
Additional Outdoor Grounds Costs 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0
Total Building Costs 216.2 216.2 216.2 216.2 216.2
Marketing Costs 104.3 103.5 103.6 104.5 105.5
Total G&A 1,674.7 1,684.5 1,695.6 1,708.1 1,721.0
Total "Cash" Expenses 2,607.9 2,587.3 2,589.5 2,612.9 2,637.1
Capital Expenditure 49.7 49.7 49.7 49.7 49.7
|Pro]ected Contributed Income Needs (1,500.5) (1,482.9) (1,479.8) (1,494.7) (I,5I2.2)|

Iltem 4.

The facility’s projected operating budget
is $2.6 million in a stable operating year.

Earned income is projected to be just
over $| million, resulting in an annual
operating deficit before any contributed
income or subsidy, of approximately $1.5
million.

September 12, 2018 |

69




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Capital Gost Estimate

The two capital development scenarios presented here
represent schematic models designed to present order-
of-magnitude estimates about capital costs and
development sources.

Scenario | represents a model in which only public
subsidy sources are utilized, reducing overall
development costs by eliminating the need for bond and
debt initiation fees, legal costs, and private developer
fees. This model assumes the City would manage the
development project directly.

Scenario 2 offers an alternative model based on a
combination of sources — public subsidy, developer
equity, bond proceeds, and private debt. Combined bond
and debt sources represent 75% of total development
costs. This scenario assumes that the City would partner
with a private developer to realize the project.

Iltem 4.

ASSUMPTIONS
LOT AREA 30000 GSF
PROGRAM SUMMARY:
Performance Spaces 8385 GSF
Front of House Public Areas 5330 GSF
Performer / Crew Supported Backstage Areas 2340 GSF
Production / Rehearsal Space 6325 GSF
Administrative Space 2470 GSF
GROSS PROGRAM AREA 24850 GSF
OPEN SPACE
Plaza 2000 GSF
Other outdoor circulation 1000 GSF
GROSS OPEN SPACE 3000 GSF
Construction Cost Assumptions
Site Prep/Civil Cost $75 PSF
Exterior Performance Space Construction Cost $350 PSF
Interior Construction Cost $400 PSF
Open Space Constuction Cost $100 PSF

September 12, 2018 §




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Gapital Gost Estimate — Scenario 1: Subsidized

The fully subsidized scenario estimates total development costs

of approximately $19.54 million.

Iltem 4.

SOURCES
Subsidy and Equity Sources:

Public Subsidy $ 19,540,169
Total Subsidy/Equity $ 19,540,169
Total Sources $ 19,540,169
USES
Hard Costs

Site Work $ 2,250,000

Exterior Performance Space Construction 2,934,750

Interior Space Construction 6,586,000

Open Space Construction 300,000
Hard Cost Subtotal $ 12,070,750

General Conditions 1,207,075

Contractor Profit and Overhead 1,207,075

Contractor Insurance 241,415

Payment and Performance Bond 362,123

Construction and Design Contingency 1,810,613
Total Hard Costs $ 16,899,051

Soft Costs
Architect/MEP Engineering $ 1,267,429
Civil Engineering 150,000
Cost Estimating 15,000
Geotechnical Report 18,000
Traffic and Parking Study 15,000
Appraisal 8,000
Survey 5,000
Phase | 5,000
Engineering Review and Draw Reviews 4,500
Construction Period Insurance 30,000
Filing 20,000
Construction Period Utilites 25,000
Legal 40,000
Title Fees 35,000
Project Manager/Owner's Rep 50,000
Soft Costs Subtotal $ 1,687,929
Soft Cost Contingency 253,189
Total Soft Costs $ 1,941,118
Start-Up, Reserves and Escrows
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $ 600,000
Operating Reserves (Capitalized) 50,000
Replacement Reserve (Capitalized) 50,000
Total Start-Up, Reserves and Escrows $ 700,000
Total Development Cost $ 19,540,169

September 12, 2018 § -




New Mixed-Use Guitural Facility: Feasibility Assessment
Gapital Cost Estimate — Scenario 2: Gombination of Sources

Soft Costs

Iltem 4.

USES

Hard Costs
Site Work $ 2,250,000
Exterior Performance Space Construction 2,934,750
Interior Space Construction d 6,586,000
Open Space Construction 300,000

Hard Cost Subtotal $ 12,070,750
General Conditions 1,207,075
Contractor Profit and Overhead 1,207,075
Contractor Insurance 241,415
Payment and Performance Bond 362,123
Construction and Design Contingency 1,810,613

Total Hard Costs $ 16,899,050

Annual debt service in this scenario adds
an additional $1.1 million to the project’s
carrying costs, for a total development
budget of approximately $20.65 million.

SOURCES
Architect/MEP Engineering $ 1,267,429 Subsidy and Equity Sources:
Civil Engineering | 50,000 PublIC SUbSId)’ $ 4’ | 6 | ’502
Cost Estimating 5,000 1| peveloper Equity $ 1,000,000
Geotechnical Report 18,000 f 7o tal Subsidy/Equity $ 5161502
Traffic and Parking Study 15,000
Appraisal 8,000 Bond/Debt Sources:
Survey 2000 1 1 nd Proceeds $ 10,000,000
Phase | >0001 " Iprivate Debt $ 5484506
Phase Il -
Engineering Review and Draw Reviews 4,500 Total Debt $ 15,484,506
Construction Period Insurance 30,000
Filing 20,000 Total Sources $ 20,646,008
Construction Period Utilites 25,000
Legal 40,000 Total Annual Debt Service
Title Fees 35,000 Bond (3.5% @ 20 Years) $ 695,952
Project Manager/Owner's Rep $ 50,000 Private Debt (6%, 25 Years) $ 424,041
Soft Costs Subtotal 1,687,929 Total Annual Debt Service $ 1,119,993
Developer Fee $ 825,840
Soft Cost Contingency $ 253,189
Total Soft Costs $ 2,766,958
Financing Costs
Bond Initiation Fees 200,000
Loan Initiation Fees $ 30,000
Bond Counsel $ 40,000
Lender Legal $ 10,000
Total Financing Costs $ 280,000
Start-Up, Reserves and Escrows
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment $ 600,000
Operating Reserves (Capitalized) $ 50,000
Replacement Reserve (Capitalized) $ 50,000
Total Start-Up, Reserves and Escrows $ 700,000 September 12, 2018 § »
Total Development Cost $ 20,646,008




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Conclusion

The Feasibility Assessment does not support developing a mixed-use
cultural venue that can accommodate performing arts (music, dance,
theatre, comedy/improve, children’s theatre), rehearsal spaces,
exhibition space, and community gathering space, due to the
following risks to long-term viability:

Supply and Demand

There is not evidence of sufficient demand for a new, mixed-use
cultural facility such as the one envisioned, nor sufficient supply of
locally-generated cultural content to animate the facility year-round
and justify the capital investment. The Festival of the Arts venues are
under-utilized and offer potential for upgrading, increased utilization
and programmatic collaboration (this is discussed below under
“Alternative Creative Placemaking Strategies”).

While some of the performing arts organizations in Laguna Beach
would enjoy the opportunity to perform in a new, state-of-the-art,
centrally located venue, the reality is that their collective annual
programming would still leave much of the annual calendar of the
amphitheater vacant — or filled with non-revenue generating activities
such as rehearsals.

*Information from AEA survey, consultations, organization websites and IRS Form 990's.

Iltem 4.

For example, Laguna Dance Festival programs for just one to two
weeks and attracts approximately 3,000 ticket buyers; Laguna Beach
Live attracts approximately 5,000 attendees across 35-40
performances annually, or approximately 143 ticket buyers per
performance. No Square Theatre requires | | weeks of rehearsals
for Spamalot, an upcoming youth production with just 6
performances at Legion Hall.

The supply of ticketed performances generated by Laguna Beach
cultural organizations would likely need to be supplemented by the
operator, who would fill the calendar by investing in its own
programs, or presenting programs from other organizations /
promoters from outside of Laguna Beach.The costs of operations,
moreover, whether borne by cultural organizations or the operator,
would significantly exceed income generated by limited runs and
accessible ticket prices.

Other expressed demand for space came from organizations

requiring “back of house” spaces such as rehearsal rooms, meeting
rooms and storage space. These needs could likely be met elsewhere

and are not so critical as to justify millions of dollars of investment.

September 12, 2018 § -




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment

Gonclusion
Site

There is not a clearly identifiable site that would fit the
proposed venue and is also in a location that would contribute
to the overall placemaking goals identified by our assessment.
Sites that are large enough for the venue are situated away from
the main corridors of Laguna Beach; sites close by are too small,
have other existing or planned uses, and/or are privately owned.

Capital Funding

AEA Consulting did not undertake a capital fundraising
feasibility study. Notwithstanding, the strategy for raising the
capital funding for a new cultural facility is not immediately
apparent. The City has indicated limited appetite for bond
financing, and limited potential to raise the Business
Improvement District tax, having raised it recently.

Iltem 4.

Furthermore, it is not clear the extent to which the arts
organizations in Laguna Beach have the capacity or inclination
to raise significant capital sums.Arts organizations in Laguna
Beach are small — not surprising, considering the size of the
community — and have limited experience with major capital
campaigns. Festival of the Arts has recently raised over $17
million for the revamped outdoor plaza and likely not in a
position to launch another capital campaign currently.

September 12, 2018 § -,




New Mixed-Use Gultural Facility: Feasibility Assessment &

Conclusion

Management and Governance

|[dentifying a competent and adequately capitalized operator is
critical to the success of the cultural facility. There is no obvious
candidate.

- It is difficult to pinpoint an existing not-for-profit entity in
Laguna Beach that has the organizational and financial capacity
to operate such a venue. Most of Laguna Beach’s not-for-
profits — including those who have expressed demand for
space — have budgets that range from under $100,000
annually to $2 million. Many are heavily reliant on volunteers,
and the majority do not have experience with managing
cultural facilities, especially a facility that supports a mix of
cultural uses.

« The City could potentially operate it; however, this would
require a significant expansion of the budget of Cultural Arts
Department to cover additional staff, programming, marketing,
facilities operations, etc.

A consortium of local not-for-profits could potentially create

a new entity to operate the facility; however, this would
inevitably be a complex legal, financial and operational
undertaking and it is not immediately clear who the candidate
consortium members would be, and whether they have either
the appetite or capacity for such an undertaking.

In terms of a commercial operator, a 400-seat performance
venue presents challenges to the financial model. Therefore,
they would almost certainly require an ongoing grant from
the City — or at least some form of risk-sharing to take it on.
A commercially viable venue would require a significantly
larger footprint, with all the planning complexities associated
with it.

September 12, 2018 § -




6. Alternative Greative Placemaking Options




Alternative Placemaking Options
Summary

Instead of developing a new, mixed-use cultural facility, below we 5.

lay out seven alternative Creative Placemaking Options that the
City could consider.

Expand the Civic Arts District & strengthen as a
designated, walkable cultural precinct that links key cultural
activation sites.

Improve utilization of and public access to two sites:
the Festival of the Arts site and the Sawdust site.

Designate two additional existing sites for cultural
programming:

Village Entrance site
Main Beach Cobblestones

Animate the District with informal, spontaneous creative
activity.

Iltem 4.

Bring new artists and cultural programming into Laguna
Beach through:

An enhanced public art program
A new Artist-in-Residence program

Leverage, where possible, public-private partnership
opportunities

Streamline regulatory framework to support cultural
activity.

September 12, 2018 |

77




Item 4.

Creative Placemaking Assessment: Alternative Options

1: Bxpand the Givic Arts District
The Civic Arts District could be expanded by connecting and
highlighting key cultural sites in Laguna Beach, and encouraging
walkability between them.The CAD could stretch from Heisler
Park and the Laguna Art Museum southeast to the Main Beach
Cobblestones / Hotel Laguna area, and then north through
Forest Avenue, the Village Entrance Site, Laguna Playhouse,
Festival of the Arts site, and the Sawdust Grounds (and,

potentially, 777 Laguna Canyon Road, which is slated for
redevelopment).

Strengthening the branding of the CAD and installing attractive, /
consistent signposting throughout will be essential. Laguna should /
also consider prioritizing funding allocations to organizations that /
actively use and activate the areas in and around the sites. v 4 I

September 12, 2018 4 7




TO SAWDUST FESTIVAL

AND LCAD

LAGUNA BEACH

Item 4.

CULTURAL CONNECTIONS AND OPPORTUNITIES

CULTURAL PATH
CONNECTIONS

PROPOSED PEDESTRIANIZED OR
PARTIALLY PEDESTRIANIZED STREETS

EXISTING CULTURAL
INFRASTRUCTURE

T
=z
|
=
a
S
o
=
o]
[a)]
-
<<
[~
-]
5
-]
|9

OPPORTUNITY SITES

September 12, 2018 E



Iltem 4.

Creative Placemaking Assessment: Alternative Options

1: Expand the Givic Arts District
The Civic Arts District would be enhanced by full or partial ($56.64, according to the recent Visit Laguna Beach
pedestrianization of Forest Avenue — building upon the tourism data)

City’s recent experiment with Park Plaza.This could be

, - Encourage informal, "pop up" creative activity (e.g. sketch
approached in several ways: 8 pop up y (e.g

artists, art fairs, food festivals, etc.)

* Full closure of Forest Avenue during certain hours or days
of the week utilizing retractable bollard barriers to close
off traffic

- Reduce the environmental impact of traffic

- Widening walkable areas to allow for more limited car
traffic at all times

« Closure at certain points of the street, with the possibility
of creating mini plazas

Pedestrianization will not only create a natural pathway
between the cultural anchor sites, but also:

 Help to support retail and commerce in Laguna Beach, as
ease of shopping increases and an arts crowd develops.
The most recent AEP survey indicated that the average
.. arts visitor spent $86.54 in 201 6; this is $30 higher than
H

'-the typical day tripper that comes only to visit the beach September 12, 2018 {75

Forest Avenue



Alternative Placemaking Options
Benchmarks: Pedestrianization

~ New Road
(Brighton, UK)

&

-
. ¢
N =

Third Street Promenade (Santa ‘o ica, CA)

September 12, 2018 4 &




Alternative Placemaking Options
2: Improve utilization of, and public access to, Festival of the Arts site

 The Festival of Arts, encompassing the Irvine Bowl,
the Forum Theater; and the Festival Grounds,
represents Laguna Beach’s most established and
versatile cultural space. As noted in our analysis,
however, these public resources are underutilized
during non-summer months.

+ The entire site could be reconceived as a civic park
and the centerpiece of the Civic Arts District, with
Festival of the Arts as anchor tenant.

« Streamlining the process through which off-season
community-based events, programs, and
performances can gain access to FOA’s space
resources represents an important first step toward
better utilization.

* In addition, reconsidering the City’s versus FoA’s
responsibilities towards cleaning, maintenance and
security of site in light of its mandate as a public park ==
should be explored.

Sl

Bl uu b -
Lestvil dwge

ik Cloted

il

\
l

g Festival grounds, Friday, April 20,2018
% during “public park” hours

September 12, 2018 4 &




Alternative Placemaking Options

2: Improve utilization of, and public access to, Festival of the Arts site

+ The Festival grounds are also technically available
from 9-5 as a public park during the off-season, but
the grounds do not currently “signal” that to the
public, nor offer adequate incentives for general
public use, apart from the tennis courts.

 FoA recently invested $17 million in upgrading the
grounds, so guarded about general public use, as
FoA is currently responsible for maintenance and
cleaning of grounds.

September 12, 2018 4 &




Alternative Placemaking Options
2: Improve utilization of, and public access to, Festival of the Arts site

Both the Irvine Bowl and the Forum Theater require capital investments to help make these spaces more versatile and modern.
The Irvine Bowl is too large for many events, but a variety of investments could create a more flexible space that will benefit both
the Pageant of the Masters and other performances. Examples of these investments include:

removable seating

acoustical retrofits to the Irvine Bowl to address noise complaints by neighbors and accommodate smaller performances
state-of-the-art digital technology

outdoor screens for films

a retractable canopy

modular stage elements

The Forum Theater requires more general upgrades to make it into a modern performance space.

Working closely with the Board and Staff of FOA is a critical part of expanding use of the space, and will likely require
commitments on the part of the City to invest in both capital and operational resources. Streamlining the approval process for
other nonprofit cultural uses will also have a positive impact on overall activity.

Iltem 4.

September 12, 2018 4 &




Alternative Placemaking Options

2: Improve utilization of, and public access to, Sawdust site

+ The Sawdust site is home to the annual Sawdust
Festival, which lasts for two months over the
summer. It also hosts a Winter Fantasy, which takes
place in November and December for one month.
Our analysis indicated that while the grounds are
used about 2/3 of the year, smaller classroom spaces
are only used for less than 1/3.

+ While the Sawdust owns and operates its own site,
it could open itself up for additional public use by
providing venues for meetings and other cultural
activities.

+ By doing so, the Sawdust would become an
important component to the development and
expansion of the Cultural Arts District and
importantly, to the animation of the area.

September 12, 2018 4 &




Iltem 4.

Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation

Village Entrance Pavilion

Two existing sites could be highlighted and
designated as “anchors” or focal points within the
expanded Civic Arts District:

|.  Main Beach Cobblestones —The current
cobblestone area near Main Beach and the
Hotel Laguna could be expanded and
enhanced to support cultural and family /
community programming near the beach.

2. Village Entrance Pavilion — A flexible pavilion
/ tent structure could be situated at the Village
Entrance Site.

Both focal points would serve as attractive new

spaces for cultural activations, family programs, :
. . - . Laguna ain Beach Cobblestones
relaxed, informal leisure activities and simple Canyon
. . 8
community gathering.
B
B

. NB:“Main Beach Cobblestones” and “Village Entrance Pavilion” are
[ H

— working titles. September 12, 2018 4




Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation: Main Beach Gobblestones

The Cobblestones area is flat hardscape at the southern edge of
Main Beach, immediately adjacent to three volleyball courts and
El Paseo, a small street featuring a turnaround that facilitates
refuse pickup from Hotel Laguna and retail shops that front on
the Pacific Coast Highway.

« The site has low visibility, lacks clear connection to either
beach or street - but unbeatable location

+ Hardscape does not lend itself well to cultural/recreational
uses

« Lacking more programmed uses, area has become a magnet for
the homeless population

BEACH RENTALS

JAIN BEACH TOYS

- If enlarged, has potential to serve multiple functions including
Public art installations, informal community gathering,
yoga/wellness activities, poetry readings, outdoor film

« Upgrading and pedestrianizing El Paseo to support café tables,
informal seating, and better access to retail

] September 12, 2018 § &




Alternative Placemaking Options: Main Beach Cobblestones

LAGUNA BEACH
COBBLESTONES SITE OPPORTUNITY MAP

- SN ’ " ~
S

Y - ~ !
\(k - ;\\\
§§ .

\\

N

i [+

» . :
A -

/4
2. N 2 a,
" | SECONDARY TERTIARY I I I I I I I I I I I I PROPOSED PEDESTRIANIZED OR

AREA AREA

PARTIALLY PEDESTRIANIZED STREETS

Item 4.

September 12, 2018 7




Item 4.

Main Beach Gobblestones

Alternative Placemaking Options

Benchmarks

. o i

.l
/
-

Reserv

Barangaroo
(Sydney,

Australia)

4 89

September 12, 2018




Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural actwatlon V'Ilage Entrance Pavilion

The Village Entrance site is located at the intersection of Broadway
and Forest Avenue, near the current Civic Art District. It is utilized
primarily for parking and storage, with some additional uses by the
City. For several years, the site has been the center of a larger
development project aimed at improving its aesthetics and broader
use.

A large and prominently located site that currently serves parking
and municipal service functions. Currently slated for
reconfiguration, elimination of municipal services, and landscaping

- Site of Water Treatment Tower, an underutilized structure that
may have small-scale public art program potential

* Village Entrance plan represents a beautification strategy, but fails
to create a magnet for activity, apart from parking

- While the plan itself does not signal Laguna Beach's cultural
history, it is our understanding that a permanent Art in Public
Places piece has been approved for the Village Entrance Site.

[ September 12, 2018 4 =




Alternative Placemaking Options

3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation: Village Entrance Pavilion

The Village Entrance Pavilion can serve as a highly-visible civic
and cultural gathering space for Laguna Beach, and an anchor of
an expanded Civic Arts District.

The Village Entrance Pavilion would be a flexible space for
cultural and community events, featuring a dedicated small

performance area, embedded infrastructure, and built-in seating.

The addition of a removable tent could add character and
iconic impact to the site.The Pavilion could be configured in
various ways on the site — either on the North Site, South Site,
near the Historic Digester, or spanning Laguna Creek — and
would be a complimentary addition to the existing plans for an
Art in Public Places work.

Potential uses include:

+ Small-scale performances across dance, theater, music,
performance art, spoken word

* Film screenings

« Farmers’ markets

Food, arts and crafts fairs

Community celebrations

Passive gathering

Public art installations

Iltem 4.

See next slides for four possible ways to accommodate a Village

Entrance Pavilion as part of the current site.

-

September 12, 2018

91




Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation: Village Entrance Pavilion

Item 4.

rr

=~
e
-

\\\
L s
-

LAGUNA BEACH

VILLAGE ENTRANCE
SITEOPPORTUNITY MAP
SCHEME 1:
CROSS-CREEK PAVILION

September 12, 2018

92




Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation: Village Entrance Pavilion

Item 4.

. 3 \ \
: \ \ 1
A 1 . o ) \ \
R ) — | \ \ \
. \ \ \
! \

: a4 2 ‘

~ \ \

\ 1

\ 3

\“
-~
-
-

LAGUNA BEACH
VILLAGE ENTRANCE

SITE OPPORTUNITY MAP
SCHEME 1A:

DIGESTER SITE PAVILION

September 12, 2018

93




Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation: Village Entrance Pavilion

I 3

Item 4.

LAGUNA BEACH

VILLAGE ENTRANCE
SITEOPPORTUNITY MAP
SCHEME 2:

SOUTH SITE PAVILION

September 12, 2018

94




Alternative Placemaking Options
3. Highlight two additional sites for cultural activation: Village Entrance Pavilion

0

\\\
——

LAGUNA BEACH

VILLAGE ENTRANCE
SITEOPPORTUNITY MAP
SCHEME 3:

NORTH SITE PAVILION

September 12, 2018 7 o




Aiternative Placemaking Options: Village Entrance Pavilion
Benchmarks

(Hong Kong)

Item 4.




Alternative Placemaking Options -
4: Animate the GAD with spontaneous, informal activity '

Cultural infrastructure within any cultural district needs to be
complemented by spaces that support spontaneous, informal and
flexible outdoor activities. These informal activities serve people
of all ages, residents and visitors alike. They can leverage Laguna
Beach’s beauty and year-round ideal climate, creatively activate
the public realm, encourage strolling and contribute to a relaxed,
European-style village feel.

Ideas for activation include:

Sketch artists / plein air painting

Pop-up performances (mimes, "buskers,’ etc.)

Food carts

Children’s puppet theatre

Magicians

September 12, 2018




Alternative Placemaking Options
o: Bring new artists to Laguna Beach

The City of Laguna Beach could consider additional investment
to bring new art and artists — including potentially national and
international artists — to Laguna Beach to infuse the city with
new creative energy every year.

This would help to strengthen the presence of artists in the
community, mitigating against the decline in artists settling into
Laguna Beach permanently due to rising housing costs.

Specific recommendations include:

|. Expanding the City’s public art program to include more,
higher-profile temporary art installations

2. Developing a year-round Artist-in-Residence program,
potentially in partnership with Laguna Beach Sister City
Association

Item 4.

September 12, 2018 § <




Alternative Placemaking Options

Item 4.

o: Bring new artists to Laguna Beach — Expand Public Art Progra

Laguna Beach’s Art in Public Places program could be expanded, focusing
on higher-profile, temporary public art installations around town that
feature recognized and emerging contemporary artists from around the
U.S. and internationally.

The program could be led by an experienced and imaginative curator
who could program multiple installations in key sites across Laguna
Beach (i.e., Heisler Park, down Sleepy Hollow, at the new Cultural
Anchors, and on Forest Ave.) that reflect trends in contemporary art
and serve to inspire the City’s artists and residents.

+ These installations would help to brand and pull people through the
expanded Civic Arts District

« The Temporary Public Art Program could work in partnership with
the leading national public art programs such as The High Line ,
Creative Time and Public Art Fund in New York; and Millennium Park
in Chicago

» It can also feature related Artist Talks and “Installation Day”

celebrations, and be supported by enhanced marketing and
interpretative content

September 12, 2018

High Line Plinth
(New York, NY)

599




Alternative Placemaking Options
o: Bring new artists to Laguna Beach — Artist-in-Residence Program

Item 4.

Laguna Beach could also develop a high-quality Artist-in-Residence
Program that can bring in celebrated artists and nurture new talent in
the City.

This would also support the presence of working artists in Laguna
Beach, and provide another vehicle through which national and
international artists can both stimulate local artists, and vice versa.

- Artists would be awarded a daily stipend by the City, with housing /
studio space to be provided by Laguna Beach residents.

- Public engagement can be encouraged through Artists’ Talks / “Meet
the Artist” Day, which could take place at the Village Entrance
Pavilion and/or the Community Cobblestone area.

- Artists-in-Residence could exhibit their works to the public at the
end of the residency, perhaps in partnership with the LAM or LCAD.

- The City could explore partnering with Laguna Beach Sister Cities
Association to expand its residency program with its “sister cities” -
Cornwall St. Ives (England), Menton (France), and San Jose del Cabo
(Mexico)

September 12, 2018

100




Alternative Placemaking Options

Item 4.

6. Leverage, Where Possible, Public-Private Partnerships

The Cobblestones site and 777 Laguna Canyon Road (currently the
location of Art-a-Fair) represent opportunities for the City of Laguna
Beach to work with private developers to integrate cultural
components into larger redevelopment initiatives.

777 Laguna Ganyon Road Redevelopment

A privately-owned site and part of an assemblage where new
development is anticipated, the Art-a-Fair site, at approximately 70,000
square feet, presents an opportunity to merge a community cultural
hub with a variety of other potential uses, including housing,
commercial or retail space, and other types of cultural uses, such as art
studios, galleries, or rehearsal spaces.

Gobblestones & El Paseo/Hotel Laguna Redevelopment

As a public parcel, the City is in a position to redevelop the site directly.
However, given emerging plans for the redevelopment of the Hotel
Laguna, a significant historical community resource, it may make sense
to work with the hotel owners and development team to devise a plan
that dovetails with new activities and spaces within the hotel.
Particularly if the Cobblestones site is integrated with a
pedestrianization plan for El Paseo, the site offers an opportunity to
create a programmable, pedestrian-friendly pathway to the boardwalk
and Main Beach.

September 12, 2018 | 10:




Alternative Placemaking Options

Iltem 4.

6. Leverage, Where Possible, Public-Private Partnerships

Potential advantages of public-private development partnership:

- Allows City to leverage private funds for public benefit projects,
thereby reducing need for public capital investment and / or bond
issuances.

- Allows for more streamlined regulatory review process with both
the City and the California Coastal Commission, assuming the public
benefit project will be folded into the larger development plan.

- Provides developers with opportunities to offset perceived
environmental impacts through providing direct community benefits
and investments.

« Likely reduces both hard and soft costs of public benefit portion of
project.

- Potentially creates mechanisms for meeting long-term operational
and programming costs of public spaces.

+ Creates a framework for launching a capital campaign to solicit
private donations.

Potential challenges of public-private development partnership:

+ Regquires clearly articulated MOU structure, approved by the City, to
ensure terms of the redevelopment are mutually acceptable.

- Ties public benefit project to private redevelopment initiatives that
may have a higher risk profile and more complex underwriting
standards.

- Requires City to develop covenants and/or easement structures to

ensure long-term protections of public spaces.

+ May reduce City’s leverage regarding planning and design

requirements for both public and private components of the project.

September 12, 2018 | w0




Iltem 4.

Alternative Placemaking Options
1 Streamline Regulatory Framework to Support Arts & Gultural Activity

One of the most common concerns expressed by both the At present, Laguna Beach is working with MIG to update the
cultural and the development communities was the complexity = Downtown Specific Plan. Part of this update includes the

and uncertainty of securing approvals and permits from the City. development of the Village Entrance site, located at the heart of
the Civic Arts District, as well as changing the language and
policies pertaining to the District. Laguna Beach may need to
revisit some of the recent updates to make sure that they
outline better approval processes that enhance and encourage
cultural activity.

One possible way to ensure that new cultural uses — facilities-
related or not — can continue to thrive in Laguna Beach is to
develop a new streamlined approval process to incentivize
cultural activities.

While it is unrealistic to expect that cultural projects will be
exempt from all regulations, expediting regulatory review
through targeted exemptions will likely have a powerful effect
on the speed of implementing new cultural projects, programs,
and activities.

One example of this might be to create a framework for either
the entire Civic Arts District or selected cultural venues and
sites that sets out a list of as-of-right cultural activities exempt
from approvals.

] September 12, 2018 | w0




Next Steps




Next Steps

Below are suggested key steps that Laguna Beach should
take in order to implement the placemaking options:

n

Hire a new city staff member dedicated to curatorial
programming, ideally an individual with public art
experience

Build permanent, flexible cultural infrastructure at the
Village Entrance site

Re-focus city grants to encourage organizations to
focus programming on sites within the expanded Civic
Arts District

Establish quick permit approval for cultural activity;
consider developing a framework that lists as-of-right
cultural activities exempt from approvals

Create connectivity between sites and hubs by
developing signage and attractive wayfinding

Refresh marketing and communications to help draw in
visitors and locals to the cultural hubs

Hire a branding firm to develop a distinctive brand for
the walkable Civic Arts District; it should incorporate a
catchy name that accurately reflects Laguna Beach’s
lifestyle (e.g.“Laguna Art Beat”)

Work with local artists to activate public spaces within
the now-expanded Civic Arts District

September 12, 2018

Iltem 4.

105




Appendix 1- Stakeholders Gonsulted




Appendix 1: Stakeholders Gonsulted

Faye Baglin, Community Art Project & Laguna
Beach Arts Alliance

Bree Burgess Rosen, No Square Theatre

Jonathan Burke, Laguna College of Art and Design

Mike Cahill, Art-A-Fair Festival

Diane Challis Davy, Pageant of the Masters and
Festival of Arts

Suzi Chauvel, Laguna Arts Commission

Ann Christoph, Landscape Architect; Former
Mayor

Natalie Connor, Sawdust Art Festival

Steve Dicterow, Laguna City Council

Meredith Dowling, Chamber of Commerce

Jason Feddy, KX95.3

Monica Fuerst, Transition Laguna

Jodie Gates, Laguna Dance Festival

Rachel Goberman, Laguna Craft Guild

Sam Goldstein, Local Commercial Properties

Ann Haight

Joe Hanauer, Laguna Playhouse

Sharbie Higuchi, Pageant of the Masters and
Festival of Arts

Toni Iseman, City of Laguna Beach

Ashley Johnson,Visit Laguna Beach

Robert Jones, Laguna Craft Guild

Peter Keller, Bowers Museum

Tom Lamb, Artist & FOA Board Member

Ludo Leideritz, Forest and Ocean Gallery

Greg MacGilllivray, MacGillivray Freeman Films

Lisa Mansour, Artist; Former Arts Commissioner

Laura Mayo

Bob McGraw, Architect

Carla Meberg, LOCA

Mark Orgill, Property Developer

Mark Porterfield

Chris Prelitz, Transition Laguna

Patty Quilter, Suzi Q Community Cen

Michael Ray, Property Developer

Suzanne Redfearn, Writer & Restaurant Owner

Ellen Richard, Laguna Playhouse

Iltem 4.

Jason Roberts, The Art You Want

Tyler Russell, KX95.3

Fred Sattler, Treasurer, Festival of the Arts

Muffin Spencer-Devlin, Laguna Craft Guild

Rosemary Swimm, Laguna Plein Air Painters
Association

Mike Tauber, LOCA

Chris Tebbutt, LGBT Committee/Realtor

Michael Thorstensen, Artist

Malcolm Warner, Laguna Art Museum

Bob Whalen, City Council

Kirsten Whalen, LOCA

Susan Whitin, Laguna Planning Commission

September 12, 2018

107




Appendix 2 - Financial Feasibility Study Details




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details

Earned Income — Facility-Gurated Shows

Iltem 4.

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Capacity Utilization (for Co-producing) 60% 60% 60% 60% 60%
Average Capacity / Show 240 240 240 240 240
# Presented (Popular Music) 20 19 18 18 19
# Presented (non-Music) 20 19 I8 18 19
# Co-produced (non-Music) 20 19 18 18 19
# Laguna-produced performance 20 19 18 18 19
# of Light Touch 26 28 29 28 28
Revenue from Presenting (Popular Music) 29,278 27,814 27,258 27,531 27,806
Revenue from Presenting (non-Music) 29,278 27,814 27,258 27,531 27,806
Revenue from Co-producing (non-Music) 93,690 89,006 87,225 88,098 88,979
Revenue from Piazza-produced performances 140,535 133,508 130,838 [32,146 [33,468
Revenue from Light Touch 124,920 134,289 137,849 136,105 134,343
|Tota| Laguna Curated Performance Income 417,701 412,431 410,429 411,410 412,401 |

Total income from Facility-Curated Shows is projected to be $410,000 by year 3 of operations.

Assumptions

* Close to 101l Laguna-curated performances and programs in the

amphitheater annually, or about 8 performances a month (rental days and

load-in / load-out have been taken into consideration)

« Assumed five different kinds of show “types” to be curated by the Facility,

more than half of which are either produced or co-produced by the Facility: -

Presented (popular music); Presented (non-music); Co-Produced; Fully
Produced; Light Touch Intervention

* For Facility-produced shows, have assumed 75% of the public is charged; for

light-touch interventions, 50% of the public is charged; and for co-produced
shows, have assumed 100% of the public is charged, with half of the income
split with the partner organization

Capacity utilization for seated performances assumed at 60% - note that
adjusting this figure up to 80% impacts the possible income by $120,000

Weighted average ticket pricing is $40, with a two-tier pricing scheme. $45
for premium seating and $35 for general seating, at a 50/50 distribution split.
Presenters pay a flat rental fee of $1,500 for the amphitheater and retain all

ticketing income, with prices set by the presenter;all security, ushers,
marketing, and other support is covered by the Facility

September 12, 2018 | 100




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details

Earned Income — Rentals

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Rehearsal Space $126,013.95 $127,274.09 $128,546.83 $129,832.30 $131,130.63
Studio Space $38,349.01 $38,732.50 $39,119.82 $39,511.02 $39,906.13
Event Space $224,336.17 $223,27041 $227,174.22 $231,471.35 $233,786.06
Conference Room $19,041.69 $19,232.10 $19,424.42 $19,618.67 $19,814.85
Amphitheater
Rental $115634.92 $116,791.27 $117959.18 $119,138.78 $120,330.16
Ticket fee $78,075 $78,075 $78,075 $78,075 $78,075
Amphitheater Total $193,709.92 $194,866.27 $196,034.18 $197213.78 $198,405.16
|Tota| Rental Income $601,450.74 $603,375.37 $610,299.48 $617,647.11 $623,042.83|

Iltem 4.

Total income from rentals is projected to reach $610,000 by year 3 of operations.

Assumptions

« Each space has its own rental price, with six categories of rental pricing per
space, based on benchmarks and Laguna Beach’s own pricing distribution that
is currently in use by the Susi Q and other government entities (in order of

most expensive to least):

+ Non-Resident + Commercial

- Resident + Commercial

« Non-Resident + Private Citizen
- Resident + Private Citizen

« Non-Resident + Not-For-Profit
- Resident + Not-For-Profit

Each space has its own distribution of renters from the six categories

 Five spaces in total are available for rentals: rehearsal space, studio space,
event space, conference room, and amphitheater, with respective per square
foot pricing of $.56, $.56, $1.46, $1, $.47 for the highest category (non-

resident + commercial)

« There is a 5% discount with each category; rental prices increase by 1% YoY

« Assumed average utilization of 15% for studio space; 25% for event space,

conference room, and amphitheater; and 50% for rehearsal space

« Assumed 75% of seats sold by amphitheater renters; ticket fee of $3 per

ticket charged for these renters

Rental pricing benchmarked against: Fullerton Museum, Laguna Art Museum,

Segerstrom Center for the Arts, South Coast Repertory Theater, Bowers Museum,
Pearson Park Amphitheater, Solvang Festival Theater, Irvine Bowl, and evenues.com

September 12, 2018

110




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details s
Earned Income — Rentals

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Rehearsal Spaces

Rehearsal Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Commercial) $843.75 $852.19 $860.71 $869.32 $878.01
Rehearsal Space Rental Rate (Resident + Commercial) $801.56 $809.58 $817.67 $825.85 $834.11
Rehearsal Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Private Citizen) $761.48 $769.10 $776.79 $784.56 $792.40
Rehearsal Space Rental Rate (Resident + Private Citizen) $723.41 $730.64 $737.95 $745.33 $752.78
Rehearsal Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Not-for-profit) $687.24 $694.1 | $701.05 $708.06 $715.14
Rehearsal Space Rental Rate (Resident + Not-for-profit) $652.88 $659.41 $666.00 $672.66 $679.39
Assumed Possible Rental Dates Annually 347 347 347 347 347
Assumed Annual Utilization (Rehearsal Space) 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
Assumed Average Rentals (Rehearsal) 173.5 1735 1735 1735 1735
% Non-Resident + Commercial 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
% Resident + Commercial 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
% Non-Resident + Private Citizen 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
% Resident + Private Citizen 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
% Non-Resident + Not-for-profit 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
% Resident + Not-for-profit 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5

Studio Spaces

Studio Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Commercial) $843.75 $852.19 $860.71 $869.32 $878.01
Studio Space Rental Rate (Resident + Commercial) $801.56 $809.58 $817.67 $825.85 $834.1 |
Studio Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Private Citizen) $761.48 $769.10 $776.79 $784.56 $792.40
Studio Space Rental Rate (Resident + Private Citizen) $723.41 $730.64 $737.95 $745.33 $752.78
Studio Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Not-for-profit) $687.24 $694.1 | $701.05 $708.06 $715.14
Studio Space Rental Rate (Resident + Not-for-profit) $652.88 $659.41 $666.00 $672.66 $679.39
Assumed Possible Rental Dates Annually 347 347 347 347 347
Assumed Annual Utilization (Studio Space) 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Assumed Average Rentals (Studio) 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05 52.05
% Non-Resident + Commetrcial 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
% Resident + Commercial 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
% Non-Resident + Private Citizen 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
% Resident + Private Citizen 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
% Non-Resident + Not-for-profit 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
% Resident + Not-for-profit 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%

September 12, 2018 | 111




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details s
Earned Income — Rentals

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Event Space

Event Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Commercial) $2,928.57 $2,957.86 $2,987.44 $3,017.31 $3,047.48
Event Space Rental Rate (Resident + Commercial) $2,782.14 $2,809.96 $2,838.06 $2,866.44 $2,895.11
Event Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Private Citizen) $2,643.04 $2,669.47 $2,696.16 $2,723.12 $2,750.35
Event Space Rental Rate (Resident + Private Citizen) $2,510.88 $2,535.99 $2,561.35 $2,586.97 $2,612.84
Event Space Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Not-for-profit) $2,385.34 $2,409.19 $2,433.29 $2,457.62 $2,482.19
Event Space Rental Rate (Resident + Not-for-profit) $2,266.07 $2,288.73 $2,311.62 $2,334.74 $2,358.08
Assumed Possible Rental Dates Annually 347 347 347 347 347
Assumed Annual Utilization 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Assumed Average Rentals 86.75 86.75 86.75 86.75 86.75
% Non-Resident + Commercial 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%
% Resident + Commercial 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%
% Non-Resident + Private Citizen 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%
% Resident + Private Citizen 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%
% Non-Resident + Not-for-profit 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%
% Resident + Not-for-profit 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5

Conference Room

Conference Room Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Commercial) $250.00 $252.50 $255.03 $257.58 $260.15
Conference Room Rental Rate (Resident + Commercial) $237.50 $239.88 $242.27 $244.70 $247.14
Conference Room Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Private Citize $225.63 $227.88 $230.16 $232.46 $234.79
Conference Room Rental Rate (Resident + Private Citizen) $214.34 $216.49 $218.65 $220.84 $223.05
Conference Room Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Not-for-profit $203.63 $205.66 $207.72 $209.80 $211.89
Conference Room Rental Rate (Resident + Not-for-profit) $193.45 $195.38 $197.33 $199.31 $201.30
Assumed Possible Rental Dates Annually 347 347 347 347 347
Assumed Annual Utilization 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Assumed Average Rentals 87 87 87 87 87
% Non-Resident + Commercial 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
% Resident + Commercial 22% 22% 22% 22% 22%
% Non-Resident + Private Citizen 1% [ 1% [ 1% [ 1% [ 1%
% Resident + Private Citizen 22% 22% 22% 22% 22%
% Non-Resident + Not-for-profit |'19% | 1% | 1% | 1% | 1%
% Resident + Not-for-profit 22% 22% 22% 22% 22%

September 12, 2018 | 1.




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details

Earned Income — Rentals

Amphitheater
Amphitheater Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Commercial)
Amphitheater Rental Rate (Resident + Commercial)
Amphitheater Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Private Citizen)
Amphitheater Rental Rate (Resident + Private Citizen)
Amphitheater Rental Rate (Non-Resident + Not-for-profit)
Amphitheater Rental Rate (Resident + Not-for-profit)
Assumed Possible Rental Dates Annually
Assumed Annual Utilization
Assumed Average Rentals
Seated Capacity
Assumed # Seats Sold
Ticket fee
% Non-Resident + Commercial
% Resident + Commerxial
% Non-Resident + Private Citizen
% Resident + Private Citizen
% Non-Resident + Not-for-profit
% Resident + Not-for-profit

Yl

$1,500.00
$1,425.00
$1,353.75
$1,286.06
$1,221.76
$1,160.67
347

25%
86.75

400

75%

$3

30%

10%

10%

10%

20%

20%

Y2

$1,515.00
$1,439.25
$1,367.29
$1,298.92
$1,233.98
$1,172.28
347

25%
86.75

400

75%

$3

30%

10%

10%

10%

20%

20%

Y3

$1,530.15
$1,453.64
$1,380.96
$1,311.91
$1,246.32
$1,184.00
347

25%
86.75

400

75%

$3

30%

10%

10%

10%

20%

20%

Y4

$1,545.45
$1,468.18
$1,394.77
$1,325.03
$1,258.78
$1,195.84
347

25%
86.75

400

75%

$3

30%

10%

10%

10%

20%

20%

Y5

$1,560.91
$1,482.86
$1,408.72
$1,338.28
$1,271.37
$1,207.80
347

25%
86.75

400

75%

$3

30%

10%

10%

10%

20%

20%

Item 4.

September 12, 2018

113




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details

Earned Income — F&B

Total income from F&B is projected to be $39,000 by year 3 of operations.

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Days Open in year 347 347 347 347 347
Daily Visitation Avg. 463 467 470 474 478
% Buyers 20% 20% 20% 20% 20%
Avg. Food Spend Per Person 12 12 12 12 12
Total Daily Buyers 92.55 93.31 94.08 94.86 95.64
Total Daily Spend [,110.60 1,119.75 [,128.98 [,13829 1, 147.69
Total Annual Spend 385,378 388,553 391,756 394,988 398,248
% to the Facility 10% 10% 10% 10% 10%
Total Income 38,538 38,855 39,176 39,499 39,825|

Assumptions

« Assume a casual café F&B option with coffee, light fare, and beer and wine available for purchase

« Visitors are walk-up (see next slide for explanation and build-out); average visitation to center of 460 people daily

« 20% are buyers; average purchase is $12

0% of income goes directly to the Facility (industry standard)

Iltem 4.

September 12, 2018

114




Iltem 4.

Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details
Walk-Up Visitation

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Annual Residential Catchment 61,903 62,224 62,547 62,872 63,198
Tounsm to Laguna 107,00 108,07 109,152 [ 10,243 [ 11,346
i Total Possible | 68,904 170,295 71,699 173,115 | 74,544

Total walk-up visitation projected to be 172,000 by year 3 of operations.

Steps & Assumptions

Developed a walk-up visitation projection to factor into F&B income projections.

This is based on a catchment analysis of Laguna residents and visitors. individuals who did not come for a festival would be willing and able to

to the Facility.
Projected Laguna Beach’s population utilizing existing 2017 data on current

residents and distribution of residents by age group, as well as median growth °
rates in population over the last 8 years (.52%)

Analyzed Susi Q attendar\ce based on November program F:alendar 'to Laguna Art Museum
extrapolate number of discrete users per week. Used this figure against the

current Laguna Beach population figures to understand total “catchment” —

and assumed similar catchment for Facility

Used annual tourist data compiled by Destination Analysts from 2016 to
project the possible visitation to Facility from the tourist segment

September 12, 2018

Excluded tourists who attended for a special event (20%); assumed that 2% of

walk

This 2% assumption based off of the following data points brought forth by the
Destination Analysts report: |) 2.2% of visitors visited “other attractions”; 2)
9% visited public art (the figure is lower for day trippers); 3) 5.2% visited

115




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details
Operating Gosts — HR

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5

Total Salaries 1,057,000 1,057,000 1,057,000 1,057,000 1,057,000
Total Benefits 297,145 307,763 318,805 330,288 342,232
|Tota| HR Costs $1,354,145 $1,364,763 $1,375,805 $1,387,288 $1,399,232 |

Total HR costs projected to be $1.4 million by year 3 of operations.

Assumptions

Salaries stem from the PNP Staffing Group annual salary report for not-for-
profits, analysis of salaries for public sector positions in Laguna Beach, and
additional internal benchmarks

Benefits are assumed at 24% of annual salary (benefits offered by Laguna Beach
to its employees points to a slightly higher benefit allocation, closer to 30%.)

Iltem 4.

September 12, 2018 | w6




Iltem 4.

Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details
Operating Gosts — Building & Maintenance

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
Gross Sq. Ft. + Outdoor Area (excl. seated areas and stage) 22,550 22,550 22,550 22,550 22,550 22,550
Training, Travel and Dues 0.09x 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121 2,121
Natural Gas 0.16x 3,670 3,670 3,670 3,670 3,670
Eelectricity 1.91x 43,090 43,090 43,090 43,090 43,090
Water 0.48x 10,785 10,785 10,785 10,785 10,785
Telephone 0.03x 747 747 747 747 747
Materials and Supplies 0.55x 12,410 12,410 12,410 12,410 12,410
General Insurance 0.21x 4,786 4,786 4,786 4,786 4,786
Printing 0.61x 13,796 13,796 13,796 13,796 13,796
Postage 0.26x 5,864 5,864 5,864 5,864 5,864
Maintenance & Custodial (Indoors) 3.63x 81,878 81,878 81,878 81,878 81,878
Outside Landscaping & Maintenace [.02x 23,064 23,064 23,064 23,064 23,064
Additional Maintenace (Indoor) 0.18x 4,036 4,036 4,036 4,036 4,036
|Tota| 206,247 206,247 206,247 206,247 206,247 |

Total building and maintenance costs projected to be $206,000 by year 3 of operations.

Assumptions additional grounds costs (see later slides)

* Projected building costs based off of multiples derived from the Susi Q’s
building and maintenance costs

« Building costs encompass all interior costs, as well as some exterior costs for
maintaining the building and roughly 500 sf of outdoor space

+ The costs of maintaining the stage and seated areas are assumed as part of

color and detail provided by Susi Q leadership

September 12, 2018

* Data taken directly from Laguna Beach’s 2016 approved budget file; additional

117




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details
Operating Gosts — Programming (Amphitheater)

Iltem 4.

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5

Possible Programming Days Per Year 347 347 347 347 347
Number of Projected Rentals (Performance Space) 87 87 87 87 87
Possible Programmable Days 260 260 260 260 260
% of Programmable Days to Programs 30% 29% 28% 28% 28%
Projected Programmable Days 78 74 73 73 74
Projected Days Needed for Load-in / Load-out 78 74 73 73 74
Available Days for Light-touch programs in Amphitheater space 104 112 I15 13 112
# Light-touch programs 26 28 29 28 28
# Presenting (Popular Music) 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
# Presenting (non-Music) 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
# Presenting 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
# Co-Presenting 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
# Intemally-produced performance 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%
Total Cost for Presenting - - - - -
Total Cost for Co-Producing $468,450 $449,478 $444,893 $453,835 $462,958
Total Cost for Intemally-produced performance $234,225 $222,514 $218,063 $220,244 $222,447
Assumed Additional Costs for Light-Touch $13,013 $13,988 $14,359 $14,178 $13,994
[Total Cost 715,688 685,980 677,316 688,257 699,398 |

Total costs for programming in the amphitheater projected to be $677,000 by year 3 of operations.

Assumptions

 Costs are associated with in-house produced and co-produced productions
as well as light-touch programming; presenters, which make up half of the
Laguna-curated performances, assume all of their own costs

«  Examined ISPA Project Pitches to understand costs for smaller-scale
productions (see table to right); resulting price for a co-produced event of
this type assumed to be half of median of the cohort ($24,000)

« Assumed $12,000 cost for a Facility-produced event, as this will likely
require lower production values, such as something like Sunset Serenades

+ Assumed additional costs for lighter touch programming ($500 per event)

Benchmarks: Costs to Produce Existing Production

Performance Type Origin Location Fee

A Proust Sonata Theater Wortham Theater Center Texas $50,000
Death Become Life Dance Yerba Buena Gardens Festival California $50,000
Kronos Project Multidisciplinary TBD Califomia $48,000
Mementos Morni Theater Museum of Contemporary Art Chicago llinos $22,500
Theatre for One: I'm not Stranger You Think | Am  Theater Arts Brookfield, Zuccotti Park, and Grace Plaza New York $26,000
Mean $39,300
Median $48,000

September 12, 2018 |

118




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details
Operating Gosts — Programming (Amphitheater - Support)

Yl Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5
# of Intemally-Curated Shows 104 102 101 102 102
# of Security Needed per Show 2 2 2 2 2
# of Ushers Needed per Show 2 2 2 2 2
Hourly Pay (Security) $20 $20 $20 $20 $20
Hourly Pay (Ushers) $l6 $16 $16 $16 $16
Average Hours Secunity Needed 5 5 5 5 5
Average Hours Ushers Needed 5 5 5 5 5
Security Cost $20,820 $20,430 $20,281 $20,354 $20,427
Usher Cost $16,656 $16,344 $16,225 $16,283 $16,342
[Total Cost 37,476 36,773 36,506 36,637 36,769 |

Iltem 4.

Total support costs for programming in the amphitheater projected to be $36,000 by year 3 of operations.

Assumptions

¢ In lieu of full-time security guards and ushers, opted for hiring hourly

workers to work the Facility-curated productions (72-80 per year) and the
light-touch interventions (26-29 per year); note: a security system and head

of security are assumed as part of the model
« $20/hr for security guards; $16/hr for ushers

« Assume 2 each needed for security guards and ushers at an average of 5

hours per event day
Sources: San Jose Theaters; La Mirada Theatre; Thumbtack

September 12, 2018 |

119




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details
Operating Gosts — Programming (Public Art & Residency)

Public Art Program

- To support a high-level temporary art program, we would suggest
investing $156,000 a year on top of hiring a public art curator to
fully manage a program of this scale

- Projections are based on an examination of costs for public art
projects in region (see right)

 For comparison,West Hollywood’s Art on the Outside program costs
$105,000 annually and supports roughly 12 projects a year; funds
come from the City’s percent for art program.The program also has
full autonomy in terms of decision making — the arts commission is
the only deciding body involved

Residency Gosts

* We have assumed $24,000 in costs associated with a residency
program for |-3 residents each season, lasting 10 weeks each

- Residency will offer studio space, materials, and a daily stipend for 5
days a week, totaling $60 weekly per resident. Housing not included.

- Figures based on internal benchmarks for cost of 2-3 month residency

programs

Benchmarks: Public Art Project Gosts

Project Location

Acrtist Involved

Budget

Number of
Works /
Events

Iltem 4.

Budget per
Work

llluminated Sculpture in Robertson Commons West Hollywood Philip K. Smith Il 500,000 | 500,000

Elevator in City Hall Automated Parking Garage West Hollywood Ned Kahn 120,000 | 120,000

Centennial Art Project - Light Gate Manhattan Beach Mags Harries; Lajos Heder 130,000 | 130,000

Newport Beach Civic Center Sculpture Exhibition Newport Beach Multiple 120,000 10 12,000

Re: Imagine Garden Grove Garden Grove n/a 20,000 | 20,000

Vasquez Rocks Natural Area Park LA Count Didier Hess 52,000 | 52,000
I

Norman S. Johnson Aquatic Center (green public art project) LA County

Bari Ziperstein

18,000

18,000

Mean
Median

121,714
52,000

September 12, 2018 || 12




Appendix 2: Financial Feasibility Study — Details s
Operating Gosts — Additional Gosts

Grounds

+ Additional costs of $10,000 annually have been assumed in order to cover maintenance of the amphitheater seating and stage
areas

Marketing

* We have assumed marketing costs of about $100,000 annually. This figure reflects 4% of the budget — which is slightly under the
typical marketing spend of larger cultural institutions. Given that the Facility is envisioned as largely focusing on the Laguna
community, we would anticipate marketing spend to be relatively modest.

September 12, 2018 || 1




STAFF REPORT

9/14/2021
To: Cultural and Arts Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Glazed Tile

Mural by Marnie L. Navarro Depicting the Bond Between Parents and their
Children in the Amount of $20,000

Item 5.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Cultural and Arts Commission consider approving and awarding a
sponsorship grant to Marnie L. Navarro in the amount of $20,000 from the City of Coachella’s
Art in Public Places Program to install a glazed tile mural depicting the bond between parents and
their children at the Coachella Fire Department Station.

BACKGROUND:

OnJanuary 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction,
remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places
ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of
Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment
and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality
works of public art.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The submitted proposal is a painted tile mural project with three main elements that will be
comprised of hand-glazed tiles and the remainder of the site wall will be painted in complementary
colors. The theme of the artwork is a “loteria” style design with cards that celebrate the role of
parents as nurturers. Mothers and fathers are key figures within the nuclear family and serve as
role models for their children and how they learn about the world around them. Each card will be
approximately 8’ x 4’ (exact dimensions determined by final placement) and the figures of mother
and father will be painted in stylized realism with a watercolor effect. The top corner of the site
wall will feature a sun with sunburst motif at a scale of approximately 5’ x 5° (exact dimensions
determined by final placement). The estimated artwork completion date would be December, 2021
Oor sooner.

122




Budget
Office/Studio Fees (kiln) $2,000
Installation Costs — Labor $10,000 (hand paint & firing tiles)
Other Costs — Install Materials/Misc. Supplies $1,000
Fabrication Costs — Materials $2,000 (glazes, exterior acrylic)
Artist Fee $5,000
TOTAL $20,000
About the Artist

Marnie L. Navarro is a Coachella Valley-based multidisciplinary artist, educator, owner of
LIFEWORK Gallery, and lifelong Valley resident. She holds a B.A. in Psychology and a post-
baccalaureate degree in Studio Art from California State University, San Bernardino, and an
M.F.A. in Interdisciplinary Practice from the School of Visual Arts, New York.

Along with her experience in the visual arts, Ms. Navarro brings business world acumen with 15+
years of Health Information Management experience in both the nonprofit and private sectors. She
isa SEED Lab Fellow with the Caravanserai Project, a program for entrepreneurs focused on social
impact endeavors at the University of California, Riverside. She currently serves as the Executive
Director of Raices Cultura, a role which enables her to merge the skills and knowledge as an
administrator with her excellence in and love for the Arts.

Proposed Mural Design Rendition

Item 5.

123




Item 5.

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Not Approve the Request for the Mural Proposed by Marnie L. Navarro
2. Provide Alternative Direction

FISCAL IMPACT:

If the Cultural and Arts Commission approves the staff recommendation, the $20,000 will be
withdrawn from the Special Revenue Funds (130) — Development Impact Fees for Public Art for
Fiscal Year 2021-22.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Application
2. Proposed Mural Design
1. Artist Biography

124




Item 5.

City of Coachella
Art in Public Places Application Form

L R
In¢ ‘ORIPER(A)TED 1940

Purpose: The purpose of the Public Arts Commission shall be to act in an advisory capacity to the City
Council on matters pertaining to the enrichment of the community through fine arts, visual arts,
performing arts, arts education, historic preservation and cultural issues; to serve as an advocate for
cultural activities and programs within the City; to implement the City’s Art in Public Places Program,
and to encourage the integration of cultural affairs into the social and economic fabric of the City to
improve the quality of life for City residents. Art in public places are intended to promote the general
welfare of the public through the acquisition and installation of public art works (Municipal Code
Chapter 4.48).

The completeness of this application, which includes accompanying plans, shall be subject to the review
of the Planning Division and Development Services Department. If you have any questions while
completing this application please ask a member of the Planning Division for assistance. Incomplete
applications will not be accepted (or the process may be delayed).

Fees apply to:

New commercial and industrial construction
Remodeling or reconstruction of existing commercial or industrial property;

3. New residential development of two or more units built in the same tract by the same owner or
developer;

4. New individual single-family dwelling units in an existing subdivision with a permit valuation
over $100,000.

Fees are based on a percentage of the building cost:

One-half of one percent (.005) for new commercial or residential construction;
One-half of one percent (.005) for remodel or reconstruction of existing commercial or industrial
property;

3. One quarter of one percent (.0025) for new residential subdivision of two or more units;

4. One quarter or one percent (.0025) for new individual single-family units constructed in an
existing subdivision with a building permit over $100,000 for that portion of the building permit
valuation in excess of $100,000.

Guidelines for approval and maintenance of art in public places shall include, but are not limited to, the
following criteria:

125




Quality of the artwork;

B. Media. All visual art forms may be considered, subject to limitations set by the selection jury or
the Planning Commission;

C. Style. Artworks of all schools, styles, and tastes should be considered for the city collection;

D. Environment. Artworks and art places should be appropriate in scale, material, form and
content for the immediate, general, social and physical environments with which they relate;

E. Permanence. Consideration should be given to structural and surface integrity, permanence,
and protection against theft, vandalism, weathering, excessive maintenance, and repair costs;

F. Elements of Design. Consideration should take into account that public art, in addition to
meeting aesthetic requirements, also may serve to establish focal points, terminate areas,
modify, enhance, or define specific spaces, or establish identity;

G. Diversity. The public arts program should strive for diversity of style, scale, media, artists—
including ethnicity and gender and equitable distribution of artworks and art places throughout
the city;

H. Visibility. The art work shall be clearly visible and easily accessible to the public

I.  Site Plan. The application shall include a site plan showing the location of the art work, complete
with landscaping, lighting and other accessories to complement and protect the art work

J. Artist. The art work shall be designed and constructed by persons experienced in the production
of such art work and recognized by critics and by his or her peers as one who produces works of
art

PROJECT INFORMATION (PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE)

Project Business Name:

Square Footage of Proposed Development:

Property Address/Location:

Assessor’s Parcel Number(s):

Project Owner: Telephone No.:

Owner Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

E-mail Address:

Architect:

Item 5.

Architect Address:

Telephone No.: Fax No.:

126




Dev. Project Completion (Estimated):

Item 5.

AIPP Fee Amount: S

Total Artwork Cost: $

ARTIST/ARTWORK INFORMATION

Program Option (Please check one)

X Artwork on Site
Donate Artwork to City of Coachella
In Lieu Fee

Artwork Budget SZO’OOO

0 wr

amwork Tiie: UNTIled (TBD upon completion)

amwork sie: COACHENIA Fire Department Station

.. Ceramic tile with pigmented glaze and clear glaze topcoat; exterior paint on remainder of wall
Artwork Material:

Artwork Dimension: 21IMENSIONS variable

. 7/60-861-3188

Telephone No.:

aist name: M@rNie L. Navarro

Address: PO BOX 5743 Fax No.:

City: Palm Springs State: CA Zip Code: 92263

e aadress: ITINAVAIIO3 @sva.edu

Install Dec 2021 (or sooner TBD)

Estimated Artwork Completion Date:

PROJECT APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE

Applicant/Representative
Name: Marnie L. Navarro Nickname (if any):

Company Name:

agres. PO BOX 5743 i A grece. TINAVAITO3@SVa.edu

City: Palm Springs State: CA Zip Code:92263

127




Telephone No.: 760-86 1_3188

N/A

Fax No.:

Item 5.

| certify under penalty of perjury that all the application information is true and correct:

Applicant’s Signature:

d;\_, %z;t'((?):()l2021.04.26 16:23:16 DateO4/26/2021

Date/Time Received: Received By: Amount Received:

A.P.P# Receipt No(s):

SUBMITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Submittal Requirements provides the basic information necessary for review by the Development

Services Department (staff review by City Departments). The Development Services Department may

determine that additional information is required before further processing can take place.

oo oo

e R

Complete and signed Art in Public Places Application Form

Copy of Fee Receipt for SN/A

One overall concept drawing showing the work in plan, and;

One rendered presentation drawing (plan and elevation), and;

A site plan with building and grade elevation showing the placement of the proposed artwork,
and;

An artist concept statement, and;

An artist resume or CV, and;

Examples of artist’s previous work, and;

Evidence of the value of the proposed artwork (contract draft showing contract value and
payment schedule will be sufficient).

Maintenance plan (including frequency and anticipated costs of maintenance and description of
materials).

128




ARTWORK PROPOSAL AND SPECIFICATIONS

Describe the artwork, its location, materials, installation requirements, and maintenance needs as
completely as possible. You may use additional paper to complete this section of the application.

1. Artwork Description

Please see additional document with artwork description.

2. Siting

Fire department station building wall facing direction of City Hall.

3. Materials with Specifications

Ceramic tile, pigmented glaze; tile mastic; grout w/ hardener; exterior acrylic paint.

4. Fabrication and Installation Procedures

Tiles are hand-painted in the studio & kiln fired; tiles installed onsite + wall painting

5. Yearly Maintenance and Conservation

Application of anti-graffiti sealant and any lighting maintenance - in-kind via City

Item 5.

129




Budget

Total AIPP FEE $$20000

This worksheet is intended as a budgetary guideline to assist in developing accurate artwork cost
projections. Once completed, this form should reflect all expenses associated with designing,
fabricating, and installing the proposed artwork and should equal the public art fee. Differences in total
expenses, which are less than the fee, will not be refunded at project completion.

Travel
Airfare: 0

Car Rental: 0

Per Diem@
s0 per dayO

Insurance 0

Professional Fees
Architect O

Transportation
(Materials or finished artwork)

Tile & materials all inclusive of install

Installation Costs
Labor $3,500 tile installation, grouting, + transport

Equipment Rental TBD

Item 5.

Office/Studio $2000 kiln fees Security 0

(Phone, fax, postage, etc.) Permits O
Other 0
Engineer 0

Landscape Architect 0

Other Costs (List) $1000 install materials - tile adhesive, grout, hardener, and misc. supplies (sponges, trowels, buckets, mixer, etc.)

Fabrication Costs

Materials $2000 ceramic tiles, glazes, exterior acrylic

Labor $6500 hand-painting and firing tiles

Site Preparation
Landscaping

Electrical

Plumbing

Foundation

Other

Contingency 0

Subtotal

Artist Fee $5000

Grand Total $20,000

130




Phase |

Phase Il

Phase I

Phase IV

Phase V

Item 5.

WORK PLAN/ARTWORK PRODUCTION SCHEDULE (suggested)

Design Development
Date:
a. Conceptual design approval by Art in Public Places Commission and City
Council
b. Start up meeting with client
c. Design Development
Design Completion and Commencement of Fabrication & Site Work
Date:
a. Structural approval (client)
b. Order materials
c. Begin fabrication
Studio Fabrication Completion
Date:
a. Break out fabrication points
Installation Completion
Date:
a. Acquisition of all appropriate certificates and permits
b. Site preparation
c. Installation of artwork on site
d. Site clean up
Final Acceptance
Date:
Notification of Completion received by City staff
b. Final approval from Art in Public Places Commission and City Council
(submit letter requesting approval)
c. Application of Certificate of Occupancy
d. Submittal of Project Completion Notification and request for return of funds

o

131




Marnie L. Navarro

PO BOX 5743 PALM SPRINGS, CA 922463
E-Mail: mnavarro3@sva.edu

Education

The School Of Visual Arts, Manhattan, New York
MFA - Art Practice (Interdisciplinary Practice)

Santa Barbara City College
Medical Coding Specialist Certificate Program

Cadlifornia State University San Bernardino
BA - Studio Art

Cadlifornia State University San Bernardino
BA - Psychology

Instituto Allende (University of Guadalajara), San Miguel de Allende, Mexico
Summer Residency in Studio Art (Painting, Sculpture, Silversmithing)

International School of Art, Todi, Italy
Summer Residency in Studio Art (Painting and Drawing)

Selected Exhibitions

The 149: Contemporary Thoughts on the Lynchings of Mexicans

Desert X Parallel Project
Coachella Valley Art Center, Indio, CA

The Light Which Reveals the Alarming Ghosts
LIFEWORK Pop-Up @ Coachella Valley Art Center, Indio, CA

what | Am Allowed to Be
University of Law, La Verne, CA

The Art Army

Solo Exhibition
XY Atelier, NYC, NY

All or Nothing
LIFEWORK Pop-Up @ SPACE Gallery, Pomona, CA

Sensing Elsewhere (Here)
SVA Chelsea Gallery - New York City, NY

The Company We Keep

LIFEWORK Pop-Up @ Marks Art Center
College of the Desert, Palm Desert, CA

Item 5.

06/2014 -08/2016

01/2014-12/2015

09/2008 - 06/2011

09/2006 - 06/2008

06/2003 - 08/2003

06/2001 - 08/2001

02/2019

08/2018

01/2017

07/2016

12/2015

07/2015

01/2015

132



mailto:mnavarro3@sva.edu

Item 5.

Page

Selected Projects

The Sky's The Limit Current Project

Commissioned tile mural for Nellie Coffman Middle School (PSUSD)
Cathedral City, CA

Raices Cultura for Dateland Park Skate Park 12/2020

Project manager and co-educator; Youth artfist feam public art project
Coachella, CA

Somos Sagrados 11/2020

Curator for special exhibition, Raices Cultura Dia de Los Muertos at Sunnylands
Rancho Mirage, CA

Dream In Color 03/2019

Collaborative mural with Ed Wenzlaf high school students, (PSUSD)
Desert Hot Springs, CA

Amor Universal 10/2018

Public Art Installation - Invitational The House that Art Built
City of Indio, CA

8-Bit Frida 03/2018
Commissioned tile mural for the Agnes Pelton Society

Cathedral City, CA

Raices Cultura for Coachella Music and Arts Festival 2017 - Present
Art & Creative Director for youth-led festival art installation

Empowerment Through Art 2016 - Present

Founder of after-school advanced art program

LIFEWORK Gallery 10/2011 - Present

Owner and curator of exhibitions
Palm Springs, CA / Various

133




Marnie L. Navarro is a Coachella Valley-based multidisciplinary artist, educator, owner
of LIFEWORK Gallery, and lifelong Valley resident. She holds a B.A. in Psychology and
a post-baccalaureate degree in Studio Art from California State University, San
Bernardino, and an M.FA. in Interdisciplinary Practice from the School of Visual Arts,
New York.

Ms. Navarro’s art practice is a combination of a studio-based orientation which
includes painting, photography, printmaking, video and sound installation,
performance, as well as public art and a community-based orientation which includes
art education programs, curatorial projects, and public programming. Her artworks are
driven by continuous inquiries into the complexity of the psyche, highlighting human
interconnectedness and behavioral motivation, with projects often resolving in
unrelated forms such as political paintings, provocative video & sound work, and
anonymous public interventions.

In 2016, she spearheaded an after-school arts program Empowerment Through Art
with Palm Springs Unified School District which focuses on empowering youth through
art and a positive peer dynamic. In 2019, this program was awarded an Anderson
Children’s Foundation grant to provide this offering within community center settings.
Ms. Navarro is a champion of arts access for everyone and wholeheartedly believes in
the power of art to transform individuals and communities.

Along with her experience in the visual arts, Ms. Navarro brings business world
acumen with 15+ years of Health Information Management experience in both the non-
profit and private sectors. She is a SEED Lab Fellow with the Caravanserai Project, a
program for entrepreneurs focused on social impact endeavors at the University of
California, Riverside. She currently serves as the Executive Director of Raices Cultura,
a role which enables her to merge the skills and knowledge as an administrator with
her excellence in and love for the Arts.

Item 5.

134




Work Samples

Item 5.

135




"

7
T

-
Iome i,
eak

AR (21
VOEECOE







Item 5.

o
4/‘\&;ﬁw§3,&?‘
i

| LA MAMA

City of Coachella Mural Proposal

Prepared for: Dr. Gabriel Martin, Economic Development Director, City of Coachella
Prepared by: Marnie L. Navarro, Multidisciplinary Artist
May 25, 2021

138




Item 5.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Overview

The submitted proposal is a painted tile mural project with three main elements that will be comprised of
hand-glazed tiles and the remainder of the site wall will be painted in complementary colors. The theme
of the artwork is a loteria style design with cards that celebrate the role of parents as nurturers. Mothers
and fathers are key figures within the family dynamic and serve as role models for their children and how
they learn about the world around them. Each card will be approximately 8’ x 4’ (exact dimensions
determined by final placement) and the figures of mother and father will be painted in stylized realism
with a watercolor effect. The top corner of the site wall will feature a sun with sunburst motif at a scale of
approximately 5’ x 5’ (exact dimensions determined by final placement). Sample sketches follow on the

next page.

Artwork Materials

The loteria cards will be created with 6” x 6” ceramic tiles which will be hand-painted with underglaze
pigments to create the figurative images of the mother figure on the first card and the father figure on
the second card. These ceramic tiles will be kiln fired several times and a clear glaze will be applied
which will seal the paintings. The glazes contain silica and therefore fuse into a thin layer of pigmented
glass on the tile with a thin layer of clear glass on top. Complementary colors will be selected for all
mural elements and the remainder of the site wall will be painted in a complementary color palette with
exterior grade acrylic paint. The sun and corresponding sunburst motif will be formed from hand-cut
and hand-painted ceramic tiles. All elements will be painted in the artist’s studio and then kiln fired at a
separate ceramic studio. The mural installation will include blocking out the areas for tile element
placement, applying the exterior base coat of paint, adhering the tiles to the site wall, allowing time to
fully cure the tile adhesive, followed by the grouting process, and a final tile cleaning.

Timeline

If selected, this proposal has a projected timeline of 5 months to completion with installation in
December 2021.

Design Concept Sketches

The images in this document are only samples of the concept for the preliminary design process and do
not reflect the final artwork or final details within the mural. The artist reserves the right to change any
and all design elements as needed.

139




Item 5.

140




STAFF REPORT

9/14/2021
To: Cultural and Arts Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Recommend for Approval an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore

the Shady Lane Murals by Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $13,000

Item 6.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Cultural and Arts Commission consider approving and awarding a
sponsorship grant to Culturas Music and Arts in the amount of $13,000 from the City of
Coachella’s Art in Public Places Program to restore the art mural walls along Shady Lane between
Bagdad Street and Avenue 52.

BACKGROUND:

OnJanuary 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction,
remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places
ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of
Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment
and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality
works of public art.

DiISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The submitted proposal is to restore the existing art murals along Shady Lane between Bagdad
Street and Avenue 52. This November is the tenth anniversary of the installation of the murals.
Each mural that needs to be repainted is 50’ x 6’ in size and Culturas Music and Arts intends to
clean and reseal them with anti-graffiti sealer. It is the intention of Culturas Music and Arts to
have the original artists work on restoring their respective murals, if they are available—otherwise,
other local artists will be sought. The original murals were painted using Nova Color Paint, which
is the best paint product in the industry to use on outdoor murals. One mural will be repainted and
it is the “low rider” mural, which will be painted by an artist named Alvarez Ink (sample works
below)

141




According to Culturas Music and Arts, the Shady Lane Murals are the oldest Chicano public art
murals in the State of California. The Shady Lane Murals are a beloved public art landmark for
the community because they depict the community’s history and heritage., which might explain
why it has escaped all the graffiti and tagging it used to get for nearly a decade.

Budget

Installation Costs — Labor (Artists Stipends) $4,000
Fabrication Costs — Materials $1,000
Fabrication Costs — Paint $5,000
Fabrication Costs — Resealing $3,000

TOTAL $13,000

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Not Approve the Request to Restore the Shady Lane Murals by Culturas Music and Arts
2. Provide Alternative Direction

FiscAaL IMPACT:

If the Cultural and Arts Commission approves the staff recommendation, the $13,000 will be
withdrawn from the Special Revenue Funds (130) — Development Impact Fees for Public Art for
Fiscal Year 2021-22.

ATTACHMENTS: Application

Item 6.

142




Item 6.

City of Coachella
Art in Public Places Application Form

L R
In¢ ‘ORIPER(A)TED 1940

Purpose: The purpose of the Public Arts Commission shall be to act in an advisory capacity to the City
Council on matters pertaining to the enrichment of the community through fine arts, visual arts,
performing arts, arts education, historic preservation and cultural issues; to serve as an advocate for
cultural activities and programs within the City; to implement the City’s Art in Public Places Program,
and to encourage the integration of cultural affairs into the social and economic fabric of the City to
improve the quality of life for City residents. Art in public places are intended to promote the general
welfare of the public through the acquisition and installation of public art works (Municipal Code
Chapter 4.48).

The completeness of this application, which includes accompanying plans, shall be subject to the review
of the Planning Division and Development Services Department. If you have any questions while
completing this application please ask a member of the Planning Division for assistance. Incomplete
applications will not be accepted (or the process may be delayed).

Fees apply to:

New commercial and industrial construction
Remodeling or reconstruction of existing commercial or industrial property;

3. New residential development of two or more units built in the same tract by the same owner or
developer;

4. New individual single-family dwelling units in an existing subdivision with a permit valuation
over $100,000.

Fees are based on a percentage of the building cost:

One-half of one percent (.005) for new commercial or residential construction;
One-half of one percent (.005) for remodel or reconstruction of existing commercial or industrial
property;

3. One quarter of one percent (.0025) for new residential subdivision of two or more units;

4. One quarter or one percent (.0025) for new individual single-family units constructed in an
existing subdivision with a building permit over $100,000 for that portion of the building permit
valuation in excess of $100,000.

Guidelines for approval and maintenance of art in public places shall include, but are not limited to, the
following criteria:

143




Quality of the artwork;

B. Media. All visual art forms may be considered, subject to limitations set by the selection jury or
the Planning Commission;

C. Style. Artworks of all schools, styles, and tastes should be considered for the city collection;

D. Environment. Artworks and art places should be appropriate in scale, material, form and
content for the immediate, general, social and physical environments with which they relate;

E. Permanence. Consideration should be given to structural and surface integrity, permanence,
and protection against theft, vandalism, weathering, excessive maintenance, and repair costs;

F. Elements of Design. Consideration should take into account that public art, in addition to
meeting aesthetic requirements, also may serve to establish focal points, terminate areas,
modify, enhance, or define specific spaces, or establish identity;

G. Diversity. The public arts program should strive for diversity of style, scale, media, artists—
including ethnicity and gender and equitable distribution of artworks and art places throughout
the city;

H. Visibility. The art work shall be clearly visible and easily accessible to the public

I.  Site Plan. The application shall include a site plan showing the location of the art work, complete
with landscaping, lighting and other accessories to complement and protect the art work

J. Artist. The art work shall be designed and constructed by persons experienced in the production
of such art work and recognized by critics and by his or her peers as one who produces works of
art

PROJECT INFORMATION (PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE)

Project Business Name:

Square Footage of Proposed Development:

Property Address/Location:

Assessor’s Parcel Number(s):

Project Owner: Telephone No.:

Owner Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

E-mail Address:

Architect:

Item 6.

Architect Address:

Telephone No.: Fax No.:

144




Dev. Project Completion (Estimated):

AIPP Fee Amount: S

Total Artwork Cost: $

ARTIST/ARTWORK INFORMATION

Program Option (Please check one)

X Artwork on Site
Donate Artwork to City of Coachella
In Lieu Fee

Artwork Budget S13 ’ OOO

0 wr

amwork Tiie: REStOration of Shady Lane Murals
arwork site: DAY Lane between Bagdad Street & Avenue 52

Item 6.

Artwork Material: NOVA Palnt
Artwork Dimension: 50' X 6' (eaCh mural)

Artist Name: Varlous
Address: 50471 POIk Street Fax No.:

(760) 984-2365

Telephone No.:

City: CoaChe”a State: CA Zip Code: 92236

e mail adaress. CUltUrascoachellavalley@gmail.com

Estimated Artwork Completion Date: Decem ber 202 1

PROJECT APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE

licant/Representativ
QZ;:: (ng;(leiz (e;r?iztat ) Nickname (ifany):Yaya
company name:CUITUIAS Music and Arts
Address:50471 POIk Street E-mail Address:Cu|turascoachelIavalley@gmail.com

City: CoaChe”a State: CA Zip Code:92236

145




Telephone No.: (760) 984_2365

Fax No.:

Item 6.

| certify under penalty of perjury that all the application information is true and correct:

Applicant’s Signature: 0%4/ O'Lié? Date:05/31/2021

Date/Time Received: Received By: Amount Received:

A.P.P# Receipt No(s):

SUBMITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Submittal Requirements provides the basic information necessary for review by the Development

Services Department (staff review by City Departments). The Development Services Department may

determine that additional information is required before further processing can take place.

oo oo

e R

Complete and signed Art in Public Places Application Form

Copy of Fee Receipt for $

One overall concept drawing showing the work in plan, and;

One rendered presentation drawing (plan and elevation), and;

A site plan with building and grade elevation showing the placement of the proposed artwork,
and;

An artist concept statement, and;

An artist resume or CV, and;

Examples of artist’s previous work, and;

Evidence of the value of the proposed artwork (contract draft showing contract value and
payment schedule will be sufficient).

Maintenance plan (including frequency and anticipated costs of maintenance and description of
materials).

146




ARTWORK PROPOSAL AND SPECIFICATIONS

Describe the artwork, its location, materials, installation requirements, and maintenance needs as
completely as possible. You may use additional paper to complete this section of the application.

1. Artwork Description

Restore the Shady Lane Murals

2. Siting

Shady Lane between Bagdad Street and Avenue 52

3. Materials with Specifications

Nova Paint $5,000; Artist Stipends $4,000; Materials $1,000; Resealing $3,000

4. Fabrication and Installation Procedures

We will be cleaning the murals, touching them up and then re-sealing them

5. Yearly Maintenance and Conservation

$2,000 (depending on how much graffititagging they endure)

Item 6.

147




Budget

Total AIPP FEE S

This worksheet is intended as a budgetary guideline to assist in developing accurate artwork cost
projections. Once completed, this form should reflect all expenses associated with designing,
fabricating, and installing the proposed artwork and should equal the public art fee. Differences in total
expenses, which are less than the fee, will not be refunded at project completion.

Item 6.

Travel Transportation
Airfare: (Materials or finished artwork)
Car Rental:
Per Diem@
S per day
Insurance Installation Costs
Labor
Equipment Rental
Office/Studio Security
(Phone, fax, postage, etc.) Permits
Other
Professional Fees
Architect
Landscape Architect Engineer

Other Costs (List) Paint $5,000; Paint Materials (including resealing) $4,000

Fabrication Costs
Materials

Labor

Site Preparation
Landscaping

Electrical

Plumbing

Foundation

Other

Contingency

Subtotal

Artist Fee $4,000

Grand Total $13,000

148




Phase |

Phase Il

Phase I

Phase IV

Phase V

Item 6.

WORK PLAN/ARTWORK PRODUCTION SCHEDULE (suggested)

Design Development
Date:
a. Conceptual design approval by Art in Public Places Commission and City
Council
b. Start up meeting with client
c. Design Development
Design Completion and Commencement of Fabrication & Site Work
Date:
a. Structural approval (client)
b. Order materials
c. Begin fabrication
Studio Fabrication Completion
Date:
a. Break out fabrication points
Installation Completion
Date:
a. Acquisition of all appropriate certificates and permits
b. Site preparation
c. Installation of artwork on site
d. Site clean up
Final Acceptance
Date:
Notification of Completion received by City staff
b. Final approval from Art in Public Places Commission and City Council
(submit letter requesting approval)
c. Application of Certificate of Occupancy
d. Submittal of Project Completion Notification and request for return of funds

o

149




STAFF REPORT

9/14/2021
To: Cultural and Arts Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Mural of

Dolores Huerta by Michael Angelo Hernandez in the Amount of $15,000

Iltem 7.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Cultural and Arts Commission consider approving and awarding a grant
to Michael Angelo Hernandez in the amount of $15,000 from the City of Coachella’s Art in Public
Places Program to install a mural of Dolores Huerta at Taqueria Jalisco on the corner of Sixth
Street and Vine Street.

BACKGROUND:

OnJanuary 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction,
remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places
ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of
Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment
and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality
works of public art.

DiISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The submitted proposal is a painted mural project of Dolores Huerta in her present age. Dolores
is co-founder of the United Farm Workers Association and is one of the most influential labor
activists of the twentieth century and a leader of the Chicano civil rights movement.

Budget

Installation Costs — Labor $7,000
Installation Costs — Equipment Rental $1,000
Fabrication Costs — Materials $7,000

TOTAL $15,000

150




About the Artist

Michael Angelo Hernandez is an artist whose artistic creativity is influenced by his passion for
music and art. Michael Angelo uses an original technigue and style to express his emotions through
the use of raw materials such as sealer pigments. This special technique is used to achieve an “Old
World” look to withstand both time and the elements of nature, which he hopes will inspire
audiences young and old. He is the founder of the art group collective “SOTA”, State of the Arts,
established in April 2019 by inviting his artist friends to join him in creating arts events all over
the desert area and throughout Southern California in an effort to educate, influence, and inspire
children and adults alike.

Proposed Mural Design Rendition

Legend, Dolores Huerta (in her present age)

Iltem 7.

151




Iltem 7.

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Not Approve the Request for the Mural Proposed by Michael Angelo Hernandez
2. Provide Alternative Direction

FiscAL IMPACT:

If the Cultural and Arts Commission approves the staff recommendation, the $15,000 will be
withdrawn from the Special Revenue Funds (130) — Development Impact Fees for Public Art for
Fiscal Year 2021-22.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Application

152




Item 7.

A. Quality of the artwork;

B. Media. All visual art forms may be considered, subject to limitations set by the selection jury or
the Planning Commission;

C. Style. Artworks of all schools, styles, and tastes should be considered for the city collection;

D. Environment. Artworks and art places should be appropriate in scale, material, form and
content for the immediate, general, social and physical environments with which they relate;

E. Permanence. Consideration should be given to structural and surface integrity, permanence,
and protection against theft, vandalism, weathering, excessive maintenance, and repair costs;

F. Elements of Design. Consideration should take into account that public art, in addition to
meeting aesthetic requirements, also may serve to establish focal points, terminate areas,
modify, enhance, or define specific spaces, or establish identity;

G. Diversity. The public arts program should strive for diversity of style, scale, media, artists—
including ethnicity and gender and equitable distribution of artworks and art places throughout
the city;

H. Visibility. The art work shall be clearly visible and easily accessible to the public

I. Site Plan. The application shall include a site plan showing the location of the art work, complete
with landscaping, lighting and other accessories to complement and protect the art work

J. Artist. The art work shall be designed and constructed by persons experienced in the production
of such art work and recognized by critics and by his or her peers as one who produces works of
art

PROJECT INFORMATION (PLEASE PRINT CR TYPE)

Project Business Name: %}ne‘)‘f’ To weh D_gJ 14N S

Square Footage of Proposed Development: ZLO 5'4. ee -;I'

Property Address/Location: J;UHSCO Q@‘MM‘J’ 1608 Sitth St cﬁafjlg,”k
Ch - 422 3¢,

Assessor's Parcel Number(s):

. Hernanolez
Project Owner: fE!tha&l Ahﬂe/lo Telepahone No:. (o) 578-9589

Owner Address: <15 §0 Good rich s+ i]')cifc CA. 92203
City: .:f:'hJ-'o State: __ CHA. Zip Code:M_
E-mail Address: ‘Q'DQ.S‘JL +ouch CJ&S{?Y}J 2 }'\O"l'i‘hm [.tonn

Architect: A r-h'sﬂ'

Architect Address:

Telephone No.: Fax No.:

153




Budget

Total AIPP FEE §

This worksheet is intended as a budgetary guideline to assist in developing accurate artwork cost
projections. Once completed, this form should reflect all expenses associated with designing,
fabricating, and installing the proposed artwork and should equal the public art fee. Differences in total
expenses, which are less than the fee, will not be refunded at project completion.

Item 7.

Travel Transportation
Airfare: [Materials or finished artwork}
Car Rental:
Per Diem@
S per day
Insurance Installation Costs
tabor_§ 7,000
Equipment Rental _$ l,000
Office/Studio Security
(Phone, fax, postage, etc.) Permits
Other
Professional Fees
Architect
Landscape Architect Engineer

Other Costs {List)

Fabrication Costs
Ma‘cerialgI , 0600

Labor $‘73 200

Site Preparation
Landscaping

Electrical

Plumbing

Foundation

Other

Contingency 3 0 77

Subtotal $/£ 0p O

Artist Fee

Grand Total $I 5._; cb0

154




Item 7.

ARTWORK PROPOSAL AND SPECIFICATIONS

Describe the artwork, its location, materials, installation requirements, and maintenance needs as
completely as possible. You may use additional paper to complete this section of the application.

1. Artwork Description / o p 220 Si. Pee,—}__‘

The mm'a] covers a‘_wal

The mural pajn-!—;n will honor 'egmd Dolores
H-Mer—\"a..wﬁ will hon‘cﬁr her b“f Pain-}inj A
Par"l"'wl‘]' Op her ’pﬂce_ L+ he,r' pre.Senvl" ase_.

2. Siting

The Mmural will be painted on Hhe side

wall of Jalsco Me,xica.n Cuisine ees-bu,:_r +
lotated en 1LO0S Sivrh St. Copchetla ca. ‘;2;3&

3. Materials with Specifications )
— Sw'\oo,\/h p5+|/.cc° “‘&Jd'uu’e, POZ\'( BM Mé’j,% YLA{
— primecr paint Nole vl
— Sfra\_,[ _pa_;n_\-
~ Golden Pa\n’\‘

— Sz.a.‘e,r'

~ Scalfold

4. Fabrication and Installation Procedures

1 a3 h the wadll.
55‘:'_:: 2. fj;ii:r%ﬁe.wwa/l] with smooth texdure..

Step 3 : Pr’zp ancd iarimzr the wall.
§+&P q.: locun-l- mura,,f Pr‘i}“+
Stee 5 Seal the mural,

5. Yearly Maintenance and Conservation

T+ would be a pr'wflege_ +» do +he

qeaf}b’ ma,'.n‘}e,na,ncef pﬂ.Sar'Vafﬁoh ot ’H'!Q

‘m uX‘aJ .

155




Item 7.

Dev. Project Completion (Estimated):

AIPP Fee Amount: S

Total Artwork Cost: § /55 ﬁﬁ@

ARTIST/ARTWORK INFORMATION

Program Option {Please check one}

A. Artwork on Site
B. Donate Artwork to City of Coachella
C. ____ InlieuFee

Artwork Budget S ,5, OQO
Artwork Title: //’46/20/ bO /0//&5- %L{&/ﬁ,

Artwork Site: ()/1,‘ ISCD \@68" Mmﬁ{‘ [OOS- S[ )C"'/’l 8‘]"‘

Artwork Material: 3}/\00‘,‘7'/—} S'I'U,C(D D}’!fh@” SIIJVM M‘ N {_
Artwork Dim g?\ ‘PC f_ MWM éo lolfﬂ wln }" S fﬂ/!ﬁf

Artist Name: M(}lw?l A0 {' Telephone No.: 7 {p(} ) 57 O- 758 7
Address: L// 3"50 f 06/ /@'M Fax No.:
City: IMO  State: %zm Code:
E-mail Address: Fﬂ€57[ 76%0%6/55/ ‘ figtrus | - Com
Estimated Artwork Completion Date: [ %ﬂ?% 456 ore. /)64”05'/ 71'

PROJECT APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE

Applicant/Representative
Name: Nickname (if any):

Company Name:

Address: E-mail Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

156




Telephone No.: 7&0 ) 573’ 6]58 7 Fax No.: .

| certify under penalty of peWﬂ%rymaﬁo is true and correct:
Applicant’s Signature: //( / ! /ﬂ 0 . 4 Date: [9" ?” az/

Item 7.

/

Date/Time Received: Received By: Amount Received:

APP# Receipt No(s):

SUBMITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Submittal Requirements provides the basic information necessary for review by the Development

Services Department {staff review by City Departments}. The Development Services Department may

determine that additional information is required before further processing can take place.

P oo ow

Complete and signed Art in Public Places Application Form

Copy of Fee Receipt for $

One overall concept drawing showing the work in plan, and;

One rendered presentation drawing (plan and elevation), and;

A site plan with building and grade elevation showing the placement of the proposed artwork,
and;

An artist concept statement, and;

An artist resume or CV, and;

Examples of artist’s previous work, and;

Evidence of the value of the proposed artwork {contract draft showing contract value and
payment schedule will be sufficient).

Maintenance plan (including frequency and anticipated costs of maintenance and description of
materials).

157




STAFF REPORT

9/14/2021
To: Cultural and Arts Commission Chair and Commissioners
FrOM: Celina Jimenez, Grants Manager
SUBJECT: Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Vietnam War

Memorial Art Mural by Autumn Martino (Artist - $13,000) and Pedro Salcido
(Artistic Director - $1,000) for a Total Amount of $14,000

Item 8.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Cultural and Arts Commission consider approving and awarding a
sponsorship grant to Autumn Martino (the Artist) in the amount of $13,000 and $1,000 to Pedro
Salcido (the Artistic Director) from the City of Coachella’s Art in Public Places Program to install
a mural at Veterans Park.

BACKGROUND:

On January 1, 2011, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 1034 establishing an Art in Public
Places Program and implementing a new development impact fee for certain new construction,
remodeling and reconstruction of public art installations. The purpose of the Art in Public Places
ordinance is to develop and maintain a visual arts program for the residents and visitors of
Coachella, to add to the economic vitality of the community, and to enhance the environment
and unique character of Coachella by providing for the acquisition and maintenance of quality
works of public art.

DISCUSSION/ANALYSIS:

The submitted proposal is a painted mural project honoring Vietnam Veterans, including the
“Forgotten, Unforgettable” poem and unit specific military unit badges.

Budget

Installation Costs — Labor $10,000
Installation Costs — Equipment Rental $1,000
Fabrication Costs — Paint & Materials $2,000
Other Costs — (Artistic Director Fee) $1,000

TOTAL $14,000

158




About the Artist

Autumn Martino is a local artist, born and raised in the Coachella Valley. She knew at a young
age that she had an artistic side, and has been developing the artistic fire ever since. She attributes
her love of art to her mother, who has been a strong force helping her channel energy into the artist
she is now. She also gives thanks to all the wonderful people she has met along the way, who have
all given her inspiration, opportunities, help and support. Her art is inspired by the beauty and
culture of the desert. She uses vibrant color and organic form to create a unique style classified as
Figurative Expressionism.

Proposed Mural Design Rendition
Vietnam Veterans Memorial Art Mural with “Forgotten, Unforgettable” poem and specific
military unit badges.

ALTERNATIVES:

1. Not Approve the Request for the Mural Proposed by Autumn Martino and Pedro Salcido
2. Provide Alternative Direction

FiscAL IMPACT:

If the Cultural and Arts Commission approves the staff recommendation, the $14,000 will be
withdrawn from the Special Revenue Funds (130) — Development Impact Fees for Public Art for
Fiscal Year 2021-22.

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Application

Item 8.

159




Item 8.

City of Coachella
Art in Public Places Application Form

L R
In¢ ‘ORIPER(A)TED 1940

Purpose: The purpose of the Public Arts Commission shall be to act in an advisory capacity to the City
Council on matters pertaining to the enrichment of the community through fine arts, visual arts,
performing arts, arts education, historic preservation and cultural issues; to serve as an advocate for
cultural activities and programs within the City; to implement the City’s Art in Public Places Program,
and to encourage the integration of cultural affairs into the social and economic fabric of the City to
improve the quality of life for City residents. Art in public places are intended to promote the general
welfare of the public through the acquisition and installation of public art works (Municipal Code
Chapter 4.48).

The completeness of this application, which includes accompanying plans, shall be subject to the review
of the Planning Division and Development Services Department. If you have any questions while
completing this application please ask a member of the Planning Division for assistance. Incomplete
applications will not be accepted (or the process may be delayed).

Fees apply to:

New commercial and industrial construction
Remodeling or reconstruction of existing commercial or industrial property;

3. New residential development of two or more units built in the same tract by the same owner or
developer;

4. New individual single-family dwelling units in an existing subdivision with a permit valuation
over $100,000.

Fees are based on a percentage of the building cost:

One-half of one percent (.005) for new commercial or residential construction;
One-half of one percent (.005) for remodel or reconstruction of existing commercial or industrial
property;

3. One quarter of one percent (.0025) for new residential subdivision of two or more units;

4. One quarter or one percent (.0025) for new individual single-family units constructed in an
existing subdivision with a building permit over $100,000 for that portion of the building permit
valuation in excess of $100,000.

Guidelines for approval and maintenance of art in public places shall include, but are not limited to, the
following criteria:

160




Quality of the artwork;

B. Media. All visual art forms may be considered, subject to limitations set by the selection jury or
the Planning Commission;

C. Style. Artworks of all schools, styles, and tastes should be considered for the city collection;

D. Environment. Artworks and art places should be appropriate in scale, material, form and
content for the immediate, general, social and physical environments with which they relate;

E. Permanence. Consideration should be given to structural and surface integrity, permanence,
and protection against theft, vandalism, weathering, excessive maintenance, and repair costs;

F. Elements of Design. Consideration should take into account that public art, in addition to
meeting aesthetic requirements, also may serve to establish focal points, terminate areas,
modify, enhance, or define specific spaces, or establish identity;

G. Diversity. The public arts program should strive for diversity of style, scale, media, artists—
including ethnicity and gender and equitable distribution of artworks and art places throughout
the city;

H. Visibility. The art work shall be clearly visible and easily accessible to the public

I. Site Plan. The application shall include a site plan showing the location of the art work, complete
with landscaping, lighting and other accessories to complement and protect the art work

J. Artist. The art work shall be designed and constructed by persons experienced in the production
of such art work and recognized by critics and by his or her peers as one who produces works of
art

PROJECT INFORMATION (PLEASE PRINT OR TYPE)

Project Business Name:

Square Footage of Proposed Development:

Property Address/Location:

Assessor’s Parcel Number(s):

Project Owner: Telephone No.:

Owner Address:

City: State: Zip Code:

E-mail Address:

Architect:

Item 8.

Architect Address:

Telephone No.: Fax No.:

161




Dev. Project Completion (Estimated):

AIPP Fee Amount: S

Total Artwork Cost: $

ARTIST/ARTWORK INFORMATION

Program Option (Please check one)

A. Artwork on Site
B. Donate Artwork to City of Coachella
C. In Lieu Fee

Artwork Budget $ 14000

Artwork Title: Vietnam Veterans Memorial Mural

Artwork Site: Veterans Park

Artwork Material: Acrylic paints, brushes and aerosol paint

Artwork Dimension:

Autumn Martino - R
Artist Name: Telephone No.: 760-424-6084
Address: Fax No.:
City: State: Zip Code:

E-mail Address: artworkbyautumn@gmail.com

) ) TBD
Estimated Artwork Completion Date:

PROJECT APPLICANT REPRESENTATIVE

Applicant/Representative
Name: _ Pedro Salcido Nickname (if any):

Company Name: Flat Black art supply inc

Address: E-mail Address: Flatblackshopl@gmail.com

City: State: Zip Code:

Item 8.

162




Telephone No.: Fax No.:

760-641-4655

Item 8.

| certify under penalty of perjury that all the application information is true and correct:

’ 07/20/21
Applicant’s Signature: Pe’al"(/"‘ SWUV Date:

Date/Time Received: Received By: Amount Received:

A.P.P# Receipt No(s):

SUBMITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Submittal Requirements provides the basic information necessary for review by the Development

Services Department (staff review by City Departments). The Development Services Department may

determine that additional information is required before further processing can take place.

oo oo

e R

Complete and signed Art in Public Places Application Form

Copy of Fee Receipt for $

One overall concept drawing showing the work in plan, and;

One rendered presentation drawing (plan and elevation), and;

A site plan with building and grade elevation showing the placement of the proposed artwork,
and;

An artist concept statement, and;

An artist resume or CV, and;

Examples of artist’s previous work, and;

Evidence of the value of the proposed artwork (contract draft showing contract value and
payment schedule will be sufficient).

Maintenance plan (including frequency and anticipated costs of maintenance and description of
materials).

163




Item 8.

ARTWORK PROPOSAL AND SPECIFICATIONS

Describe the artwork, its location, materials, installation requirements, and maintenance needs as
completely as possible. You may use additional paper to complete this section of the application.

1. Artwork Description

A memorial mural honoring the service of our local Vietham veterans.
Including the famous "Forgotten, unforgetable" poem. Along with specific unit badges

2. Siting

3. Materials with Specifications

Materials will include acrylic based paint, aerosol paint, brushes, ladders, masking tape and tarps

4. Fabrication and Installation Procedures

5. Yearly Maintenance and Conservation
Anti graffiti coat can be added for an added cost

164




Item 8.

Budget Total AIPP FEE S

This worksheet is intended as a budgetary guideline to assist in developing accurate artwork cost
projections. Once completed, this form should reflect all expenses associated with designing,
fabricating, and installing the proposed artwork and should equal the public art fee. Differences in total
expenses, which are less than the fee, will not be refunded at project completion.

Travel Transportation

Airfare: (Materials or finished artwork)
Car Rental:

Per Diem@

S per day

Insurance Installation Costs

Labor $10,000
Equipment Rental 1,000

Office/Studio Security
(Phone, fax, postage, etc.) Permits
Other

Professional Fees
Architect
Landscape Architect Engineer

. int and materials $2,000
Other Costs (List) paint and materials $

Fabrication Costs

Materials

Labor Contingency Flat Black art supply art director fee $1,000
Site Preparation Subtotal

Landscaping

Electrical Artist Fee

Plumbing

Foundation Grand Total 14,000

Other

165




Phase |

Phase Il

Phase I

Phase IV

Phase V

Item 8.

WORK PLAN/ARTWORK PRODUCTION SCHEDULE (suggested)

Design Development
Date:
a. Conceptual design approval by Art in Public Places Commission and City
Council
b. Start up meeting with client
c. Design Development
Design Completion and Commencement of Fabrication & Site Work
Date:
a. Structural approval (client)
b. Order materials
c. Begin fabrication
Studio Fabrication Completion
Date:
a. Break out fabrication points
Installation Completion
Date:
a. Acquisition of all appropriate certificates and permits
b. Site preparation
c. Installation of artwork on site
d. Site clean up
Final Acceptance
Date:
Notification of Completion received by City staff
b. Final approval from Art in Public Places Commission and City Council
(submit letter requesting approval)
c. Application of Certificate of Occupancy
d. Submittal of Project Completion Notification and request for return of funds

L

166




	Top
	Item 1.	Regular Meeting Minutes of August 26, 2021 (Cultural and Arts)
	Cultural-Arts-Minutes-08-26-2021

	Item 3.	Art in Public Places Program Fund Report
	Staff Report - Art Fund Financial Report

	Item 4.	Recommend Approval to Conduct a Request for Proposals Solicitation Process to Conduct a Feasibility Study for the Coachella Art Walk Program in the Amount of $40,000
	Staff Report - Authorization to Conduct RFP for Art Walk Feasibility Study
	SAMPLE RFP - City of Ogden Creative District Plan
	SAMPLE - Ciyt of Laguna Beach Creative Placemaking Assessment

	Item 5.	Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Glazed Tile Mural by Marnie L. Navarro Depicting the Bond Between Parents and their Children in the Amount of $20,000
	Staff Report - Mural by Marnie L Navarro
	Art in Public Places Application - Marnie L. Navarro
	Biography - Marnie Navarro
	Proposed Mural Design - Marnie L. Navarro

	Item 6.	Recommend for Approval an Art in Public Places Program Proposal to Restore the Shady Lane Murals by Culturas Music and Arts in the Amount of $13,000
	Staff Report - Shady Lane Murals Restoration Request
	Application - Cutluras Music and Arts

	Item 7.	Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Mural of Dolores Huerta by Michael Angelo Hernandez in the Amount of $15,000
	Staff Report - Dolores Huerta Mural
	Application

	Item 8.	Recommend Approval of an Art in Public Places Proposal for a Vietnam War Memorial Art Mural by Autumn Martino (Artist - $13,000) and Pedro Salcido (Artistic Director - $1,000) for a Total Amount of $14,000
	Staff Report - Vietnam Memorial Mural
	Application

	Bottom

